
MEETING OF THE GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION 
November 28, 2022, 6:00 p.m. 

AGENDA 

1. Call GWRC Meeting to Order – Chair Jason Graham

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll Call and Determination of Quorum – Chip Boyles, Executive Director

4. Approval of the GWRC Agenda (ACTION ITEM)

5. Approval of Minutes of the October 24, 2022, GWRC Meeting (ACTION ITEM)

6. Financial Report – Michele Dooling, Director of Finance & Personnel
a. Monthly Financial Report (October, 2022)

7. Public Involvement – Comments and questions from members of the public are welcome at this time.
a. Public Comment In Person
b. Written Comments Received
c. Presentations

i. Rappahannock River Basin Commission –  Eldon James, RRBC Executive Director
1. RRBC Solar Sub-Committee on Solar Policies

ii. Regional Water Supply Planning Regulations – Ryan Green, DEQ
8. Old Business

a. Resolution 23-03: Employee Handbook, Personnel Policies & Procedures Revisions – Chip Boyles
b. Calendar Year 2023 GWRC Meeting Schedule (ACTION ITEM) – Chip Boyles

9. New Business
a. FY22 GWRC Financial Audit  – Chip Boyles

i. FY22 Financial Report – Robinson Farmer Cox
ii. Resolution 23-02 Acceptance of FY22 GWRC Financial (ACTION ITEM)– Chip Boyles
iii. VDEQ Septic Local Partner Program Grant Application

b. Executive Director’s Report – Chip Boyles
i. Program Updates

c. Correspondence

10. Enter Closed Session (ACTION ITEM)

I move that the George Washington Regional Commission convene in Closed Meeting pursuant to Virginia 
Freedom of Information Act (FOIA): 

1. Section 2.2-3711(A)(1) for the discussion, consideration, or interviews of prospective candidates for
employment; assignment, appointment, promotion, performance, demotion, salaries, disciplining, or
resignation of specific public officers, appointees, or employees of any public body

2. Section 2.2-3711(A)(7) for the Consultation with legal counsel and briefings by staff members or
consultants pertaining to actual or probable litigation, where such consultation or briefing in open
meeting would adversely affect the negotiating or litigating posture of the public body.

11. Return to Open Session (ACTION ITEM)



I move that the George Washington Regional Commission return to Open Meeting and certify, by roll call 
vote, that to the best of each member's knowledge, only public business matters identified in the motion 
convening the Closed Meeting and lawfully exempted from FOIA’s open meeting requirements were heard, 
discussed, or considered during the Closed Meeting, and that this roll call vote be recorded in the meeting 
minutes. 

12. Adjourn GWRC Meeting

Next GWRC Meeting: January 23, 2023 

George Washington Regional Commission meetings are open to the public. Public participation is solicited without regard to race, color, 
national origin, age, sex, religion, disability or family status. Persons who require special accommodations under the Americans with 

Disabilities Act or persons who require translation services (free of charge) should contact the GWRC at (540) 642-1579 or 
gibson@gwregion.org at least two days prior to the meeting. If hearing impaired, telephone 1-800-273-7545 (TDD). La participación 

pública es solicitada sin distinción de raza, color, origen nacional, edad, sexo, religión, discapacidad o su estado familiar. Las personas 
que requieren alojamiento especial de acuerdo con el Americans with Disabilities Act, o personas que requieren servicios de traducción 

(libre de cargo) deben comunicarse con la GWRC al (540) 642-1579 o gibson@gwregion.org al menos dos días antes de la reunión. 
Personas con problemas auditivos, llama 1-800-273-7545 (TDD). 



5. Approval of Minutes of the October 24, 2022, GWRC Meeting
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MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE 
GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION 

October 24, 2022 
GWRC Conference Room 

MEMBERS PRESENT:   All Attending In-Person:  Chair, Jason Graham, City of 
Fredericksburg; Jeff Black, Caroline County; Matt Kelly, City of Fredericksburg; Cathy 
Binder & Annie Cupka, King George County; Lori Hayes (Alternate) &Tim McLaughlin, 
Spotsylvania County; Meg Bohmke & Darrell English, Stafford County; Attending:  
Virtually:  None 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Jeff Sili, Caroline County; Chris Yakabouski, & David Ross 
(Alternate) Spotsylvania County; Crystal Vanuch & Pamela Yeung (Alternates), Stafford 
County 

OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE:  Attending In-Person:  City of Fredericksburg, Jon Gerlach, 
Alternate; Chris Payton, Brisben Center; Meghann Cotter, Micah Ministries; Jan Erkert, Micah 
Board; Anne Little, Tree Fredericksburg; & Julie Anderson & James Banta, Virginia Supportive 
Housing; Attending Virtually: None 

STAFF: (Attending In-Person):  Chip Boyles, Michele Dooling, Kate Gibson, Ian Ginger; 
Meredith Keppel, Sarah Oldaker & Sam Shoukas 

CALL TO ORDER:  Mr. Graham called the GWRC meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. with a 
quorum present; which was followed by the Pledge of Allegiance.    

APPROVAL OF GWRC MEETING AGENDA – October 24, 2022 (Action Item) 

Upon motion made by Mr. Kelly and seconded by Ms. Bohmke, with all other members 
concurring, the October 24th GWRC meeting agenda was approved as submitted. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

a.)  September 26 2022 GWRC Meeting (Action Item) 

Upon motion by Ms. Bohmke and seconded by Mr. Kelly, with all other members concurring, 
the minutes of the September 26th meeting were approved as submitted. 

FINANCIAL REPORT:  

a.) Monthly Financial Report (July 2022) – Michele Dooling 

Ms. Dooling presented financial reports to include:  Balance Sheet, Agency-wide Income 
Statement, Dashboard & Cash Flow statement for both the month of September, 2022 and the 
Quarterly Year-To-Date for July-September, 2022 as included in the agenda packet.  There were 
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no questions asked of Ms. Dooling from the GWRC committee members that required further 
reporting from staff. 
 

PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT:   

a.) Anne Little, Fredericksburg, VA 

Ms. Little was speaking on behalf of the Thurman Brisben Shelter and concern for potential 
funding reductions as described in a recent article in the Free Lance Star.  Ms. Little stated 
Thurman Brisben is a facility that provides temporary housing to residents facing homelessness.  
However, to be considered for services, residents need to be both alcohol/drug free.  Ms. Little 
stated Thurman Brisben does not receive any funding from the CoC and its funding is based on 
locality contributions.  Ms. Little advised the City of Fredericksburg is steadfast in its support for 
Thurman Brisben; however, the other localities within the region are considering reducing the 
funding previously allocated in past years.  Ms. Little stated Thurman Brisben provides families 
and individuals an opportunity of becoming positive and productive citizens by providing 
temporary services, life skills, job training, etc. to ensure a permanent homelessness situation 
does not occur.  Ms. Little asked that the other jurisdictions in Planning District 16 re-consider 
continued financial support to the Thurman Brisben Shelter.  

b.) Chris Payton, Thurman Brisben 

Mr. Payton also spoke in regard to the recent article in the Free Lance Star.  Mr. Payton stated 
that jurisdictional funding allocations for Thurman Brisben should not come under the CoC 
review board.  Mr. Payton stated that the Thurman Brisben Shelter and the CoC are actually 
competitive agencies and entities.  Mr. Payton stated each entity has different approaches and 
missions and should therefore be funded separately with each having its own level playing fields 
in place.  

There were neither no written public comments received prior to tonight’s meeting nor any 
additional verbal comments presented during the October 24th GWRC meeting. 

PRESENTATIONS: 

a.) Virginia Supportive Housing-Micah Ministries-Continuum of Care Housing 
Partnership – Sam Shoukas 

Ms. Shoukas advised that as a result of the Unsheltered Homeless Summit that occurred in 
September of 2021, the ultimate goal is to eliminate homelessness.  Ms. Shoukas relayed this 
region is the fastest growing homeless population within the State of Virginia.  Ms. Shoukas 
advised the solution to preventing homelessness is to provide homes.   
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Ms. Shoukas stated the CoC provides client-centered and individually tailored support services 
while also providing affordable housing opportunities.  Ms. Shoukas advised providing 
additional housing inventory that targets the lowest income households within the region is the 
objective.   

On-going from the September 2021 summit, the following items have been addressed;  
December 2021 – tours of successful Virginia Supportive Housing communities that are already 
established; March 2022 – discussion of current/future zoning regulations from each of the 
Planning District 16 jurisdicitons; July 2022 – MOU endorsement between Virginia Supportive 
Housing, Micah Ministries, the City of Fredericksburg and Mary Washington Healthcare.  
Currently, we are in the property search phase.  Ms. Shoukas stated that for a property to be 
considered for an affordable housing community, the following considerations need to be 
incorporated which include:  a five-to-ten acre parcel; a site that is both accessible by public 
transportation and/or a walkable community for retail/employment opportunities; the land cost; 
neighborhood concerns; a favorable zoning endorsement from the locality where a site is 
selected; and consideration of development challenges such as environmental concerns, 
topography, noise, etc.   

Ms. Shoukas stated the challenges to date have included the high cost of land on the main 
corridors; access issues; due to real estate market, properties were selling quicker than contracts 
could be executed; etc.  Ms. Shoukas stated existing hotel buildings were explored for the 
purpose of converting individual hotel rooms into loft-type apartments was not a viable option as 
the hotels available were in a bad state of disrepair and were too costly to convert.   

Ms. Shoukas stated that Mary Washington Healthcare continually supports Micah’s respite care 
program and other program entities as housing (or lack thereof) significantly contributes to 
health issues.  Ms. Shoukas stated Mr. Richardson from MWHC could not be at tonight’s 
meeting; however, forwarded the following presentation for Ms. Shoukas to present on the 
agency’s behalf.   

Mary Washington Healthcare (MWHC) fully recognizes the importance of providing adequate 
and affordable housing.  MWHC realizes the housing needs are important social detriments for 
ensuring health and wealth to the people in the community that we serve.  MWHC continues to 
support the current plans for creating permanent supportive housing options for the region’s 
chronically homeless populations and asks for endorsement from the GWRC commission for 
continued financial support for this initiative.   

Ms. Cotter with Micah Ministries stated the local churches have coordinated care to assist the 
citizens both who are living on the streets or have experienced chronic homelessness since 2005.  
Ms. Cotter stated that homelessness is not the only issue as 42% of homeless residents also have 
chronic health conditions; 21% have special education needs; almost 50% have serious mental 
illnesses; and 68% have experienced four or more adverse childhood experiences.   
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Ms. Cotter stated the vision is for development of 30-50 small homes that also provide amenities 
for a community center, garden/green space environment, health clinic, memorial gardens, 
workshops for income development, market and support services.  Ms. Cotter stated the MOU 
with Fredericksburg, Mary Washington Healthcare and Virginia Supportive Housing authority is 
for the identification of a property site for Micha’s project for construction of a 60–80-unit 
apartment building by VSH that would require citizens to pay 30% of their income to off-set 
their housing cost.   

Ms. Cotter stated the site identification of 10 acres or more is underway.  Meetings and work 
have occurred between the partners which include engineers, local developers, a national 
architectural firm, the local Community Foundation fund. Efforts are underway for a community 
buy-in and for re-zoning efforts to occur.  Ms. Cotter stated the cost of the project will be 
approximately $8m and will come from private funding, house sponsorships, local governments, 
in-kind donations, and state/federal grants.   

Ms. Anderson with Virginia Supportive Housing association stated the agency’s goal is for 
permanently ending homelessness for good.  Ms. Anderson stated that the supportive housing 
models that are already in place and have been continually successful across the State include an 
independent living environment that has wrap-around supportive services and provides 
permanent housing opportunities.   

OLD BUSINESS: 
 

a.) Resolution 23-01:  Go Virginia Council Region 6 Capacity Building Contract 
(Action Item)– Ian Ginger 

Mr. Ginger presented an endorsement request of Resolution 23-01 to the GWRC commission at 
the August meeting for review with a request for the resolution be adopted at the upcoming 
October 24th GWRC meeting.  Mr. Ginger stated the resolution is a request for $250,000 in 
capacity building funds that will be used for staffing, meeting sites, and project development.  
Mr. Ginger stated this is an annual program contract that is requested for renewal every year and 
the renewal dollars continue to be maintained at $250,000. This funding is included in the 
approved FY23 GWRC budget. 

Upon motion by Mr. Kelly and seconded by Ms. Cupka, with all other members concurring, 
Resolution 23-01 was adopted by the GWRC commission at the October 24th meeting.   

b.) Resolution 23-02:  Regional Housing Advisory Committee Framework (Review 
& Discussion only) – Chip Boyles 

Mr. Boyles advised resolution 23-02 for development of a Regional Housing Advisory 
Committee as introduced to the GWRC commission at the September meeting.  Comments and 
feedback were provided to staff from GWRC members.  The resolution in tonight’s agenda 
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packet is not for endorsement but is being provided to reflect the wording, edits, changes made 
from board members from the September meeting.  Mr. Boyles stated a request to approve, or 
not approve, would be on the November GWRC agenda.   

There was considerable discussion and comments from GWRC members that involved topics as 
to whether another advisory committee was needed; the purpose of an advisory committee; more 
information to be provided on what the advisory committee would be assigned to do; board 
members felt this was an item that needed full Board of Supervisor review and not an item that 
one or two locality representatives decided on; who would nominate members to serve on an 
advisory committee; etc.    

It was recommended by the GWRC commission for GWRC management to bring this item up 
for discussion, revision, endorsement, etc. to the City Manager and County Administrators at the 
upcoming CAO meeting in early November to determine if there would be locality support. 

NEW BUSINESS: 

a.)  Employee Handbook, Personnel Policies & Procedures Revisions Introduction– 
Chip Boyles 

Mr. Boyles advised staff is working on updating GWRC’s employee handbook and as this is a 
large undertaking for staff, the revisions will begin occurring in November.  Mr. Boyles stated 
that approximately five policy/procedure revisions will be submitted to the GWRC commission 
for endorsement at monthly meetings.  Mr. Boyles relayed the policy component will be broader 
in nature whereas, the procedures will be detailed.  For example, Mr. Boyles stated the dress 
code – the policy will state an appropriate dress code is in place for all employees and the 
procedures will allow discretion for GWRC management to determine if/when jeans are allowed, 
etc.  Mr. Boyles stated the revisions are over-due and need to be modified; however, now the 
way the handbook is written every change/revision would require GWRC commission 
endorsement.  Mr. Boyles stated an issue such as an appropriate office dress code is probably not 
something the commission members have any desire to monitor and would be comfortable 
leaving these decisions up to GWRC management staff to enforce.  However, the Commission 
would be interested in knowing a dress code is included within an employee’s handbook.   

Mr. McLaughlin stated as GWRC employees are actually Stafford County employees as Stafford 
County processes pay roll duties, then why would staff just not be in compliance with the 
Stafford County employee handbook?  Mr. Boyles stated staff does try to be in compliance with 
Stafford County as well; however, there are certain issues regarding finances such as leave time, 
additional holiday time-off, etc. whereby GWRC cannot be in compliance with Stafford because 
funding has not been accounted for within the GWRC budget.    

b.)  Calendar Year FY2023 GWRC Meeting Schedule – Chip Boyles 
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Mr. Boyles advised the GWRC meeting schedule for FY2023 is included in tonight’s agenda 
packet.  Other than the November meeting occurring on the Monday after Thanksgiving (which 
concurred with this November’s meeting schedule with no locality conflict), it does not appear 
that any other GWRC scheduled meetings will occur on or around an upcoming holiday.  Mr. 
Boyles asked locality representatives to advise staff if there is a scheduling conflict with 
individual locality conflicts and/or conferences, etc.   

c.) Executive Director’s Report – Chip Boyles 

Mr. Boyles advised the Executive Director’s report is included in the agenda packet for member 
review.   

a.) Staffing Updates 

Mr. Boyles advised that GWRC has hired an Environmental Planner and FAMPO has hired a 
GIS Planner, both of whom have recently come on board.  Mr. Boyles stated GWRC is now fully 
staffed. 

b.) Program Updates – Included in Executive Director’s report for tonight’s meeting 
agenda informational packet. 

 
d.) Correspondence:  None 

 
ADJOURN GWRC MEETING – The October 24th George Washington Regional Commission 
meeting adjourned at 7:12 p.m.  The next scheduled GWRC meeting will be held on November 
28, 2022 at 6:00 p.m.  There is no GWRC meeting scheduled for December, 2022. 
   
 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, Chip Boyles, Executive Director 
(Draft Minutes prepared by JoAnna Roberson) 
 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

6a. Monthly Financial Report (October, 2022)  
  



 9:05 AM

 11/18/22

 Accrual Basis

 George Washington Regional Commission

 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
 October 2022

Oct 22 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

43400 · REVENUE

43410 · REV - Federal Contracts 89,474.19 118,035.27 -28,561.08 75.8%

43420 · REV - State Contracts 75,410.87 341,657.66 -266,246.79 22.07%

43430 · REV- Local Dues 23,356.45 21,966.58 1,389.87 106.33%

43440 · REV - Miscellaneous Revenue 44,237.31 128,187.58 -83,950.27 34.51%

43475 · Other - Miscellaneous Revenue 3,075.82 1,666.67 1,409.15 184.55%

43400 · REVENUE - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Total 43400 · REVENUE 235,554.64 611,513.76 -375,959.12 38.52%

44840 · Investments 0.00

Total Income 235,554.64 611,513.76 -375,959.12 38.52%

Gross Profit 235,554.64 611,513.76 -375,959.12 38.52%

Expense

60000 · Direct Expense

60100 · Salaries 53,099.64 68,615.36 -15,515.72 77.39%

60250 · Fringe Benefits 0.17 0.00 0.17 100.0%

60300 · Indirect Expense Allocation 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

60900 · Marketing/Public Relations Exp. 10,228.79 8,793.69 1,435.10 116.32%

62110 · Direct Consultant Services 34,688.00 51,448.33 -16,760.33 67.42%

62800 · Software & IT Equipment 2,206.51 3,379.58 -1,173.07 65.29%

62840 · IT Rental,Maintenance Subscript 1,900.00 1,426.25 473.75 133.22%

65000 · Direct Office Supplie 931.59 2,028.76 -1,097.17 45.92%

65100 · Pass Thru Expenses 48,159.08 365,429.50 -317,270.42 13.18%

65200 · Contingency/Carry Over Funds 0.00 19,824.93 -19,824.93 0.0%

68300 · Travel and Meetings 1,095.80 659.58 436.22 166.14%

68301 · Conferences & Conventions 2,188.48 1,970.58 217.90 111.06%

68320 · Travel 788.79 973.51 -184.72 81.03%

Total 60000 · Direct Expense 155,286.85 524,550.07 -369,263.22 29.6%

66000 · Payroll Expenses 0.00

70000 · Overhead Expense

70025 · Salaries 17,073.84

70100 · Building Expenses 6,309.58 6,217.16 92.42 101.49%

70225 · Telephone and Internet 703.32 751.00 -47.68 93.65%

70250 · IT Equipment Rental Main & Subs 3,644.02 1,702.95 1,941.07 213.98%

70275 · Capital Expenditures 0.00 376.00 -376.00 0.0%

70290 · Equipment Purchase 2,083.48 1,207.75 875.73 172.51%

70300 · Office Supplies 480.95 638.33 -157.38 75.35%

70325 · Postage, Shipping & Delivery -153.16 25.00 -178.16 -612.64%

70330 · Newspapers and Subscriptions 0.00 10.00 -10.00 0.0%

70340 · Membership 0.00 400.00 -400.00 0.0%

70350 · Professional Services 1,500.00 2,625.00 -1,125.00 57.14%

70360 · Meeting Expense 370.21 820.66 -450.45 45.11%

70370 · Conferences & Training 507.85 684.00 -176.15 74.25%

70380 · Travel 545.06 400.00 145.06 136.27%

70400 · Insurance Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

70450 · Bank Fees 0.00 61.00 -61.00 0.0%

70460 · Public Relations/Marketing 0.00 250.00 -250.00 0.0%
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 9:05 AM

 11/18/22

 Accrual Basis

 George Washington Regional Commission

 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
 October 2022

Oct 22 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

70490 · Contingency 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Total 70000 · Overhead Expense 33,062.12 16,168.85 16,893.27 204.48%

75030 · Fringe Benefits 47,205.67 10,298.07 36,907.60 458.39%

Total Expense 235,554.64 551,016.99 -315,462.35 42.75%

Net Ordinary Income 0.00 60,496.77 -60,496.77 0.0%

Net Income 0.00 60,496.77 -60,496.77 0.0%
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 9:18 AM

 11/18/22

 Accrual Basis

 George Washington Regional Commission

 Balance Sheet
  October 31, 2022

Oct 31, 22

ASSETS

Current Assets

Checking/Savings

10000 · Cash - Business Checking

10200 · Carter Bank - Operating 473,953.01

10300 · Atlantic Union Operating -468.83

10700 · Carter Bank - GWRC Sweep 25,049.15

10800 · Atlantic Union Money Market -4.02

10900 · Miscellaneous Credits 7,969.43

10901 · Carter Bank - RRBC 125,098.27

10910 · Wells Fargo - AdVANtage Vanpool 0.47

10911 · Carter Bank - ADVANTage 26,038.13

10912 · Atlantic Union - RRBC 6.66

Total 10000 · Cash - Business Checking 657,642.27

Total Checking/Savings 657,642.27

Accounts Receivable 464,571.36

Total Current Assets 1,122,213.63

Fixed Assets

15000 · Furniture & Equipment 17,172.77

Total Fixed Assets 17,172.77

TOTAL ASSETS 1,139,386.40

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable 219,445.13

Other Current Liabilities

24000 · Payroll Liabilities 65,279.89

25000 · Deferred Revenue

25100 · Deferred Locality Revenue Dues 99,791.60

25115 · Deferred Unsheltered Homelessne 15,100.00

25125 · Deferred Legislative Revenue 50,393.35

25127 · Deferred Rapp. River Basin Comm 169,055.16

25130 · Deferred LEPC Revenue 64,634.40

25146 · DRPT AdVANtage FY22 10,100.49

25150 · Fund Contribution 14,424.00

25155 · Caroline County Leased Parking 435.50

25160 · Deferred Grant Expenses/Revenue -237,726.97

25171 · Comm. Based Eligiibility Worker 15,657.07

25172 · COVID Hotel Voucher Fund 5,000.00

Total 25000 · Deferred Revenue 206,864.60

Total Other Current Liabilities 272,144.49

Total Current Liabilities 491,589.62

Total Liabilities 491,589.62

Equity 647,796.78

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 1,139,386.40

 Page 1 of 1



Monthly Financial Report : George Washinton Regional Commission

Summary Statement of Financial Position Oct-22

Actual

Current Assets 1,139,386         

Current Liabilities 591,381            

Working Capital 548,005            

Fixed and Long Term Assets 17,173              

Term Liabilities 565,178            

Equity -                    

Ratios and Analysis Actual Target Variance

Working Capital Ratio 2.07                  1.20 0.87                    

$ %

Overdue Receivables 171,959    37.01% 50.00% 12.99%

Overdue Payables -           0.00% 25.00% 25.00%

Qtrly Dues & Other Localities RRBC

Variance Explanations and Commentary

Accounts Payable:  Current:  $ 219.4K.  

Accounts Receivable:  90+ days:  $144.8K  ( $101.6K Spotsylvania Dues; $ 15.9K CZM; $ 10.5K FEMA;  $8.5K WIP III & $ 6.6K 5303)  60+ days:  $7K ($4.7K SP Rural, $ 1.2K HUD COC & $ 789.50 CZM)

Current:  $ 292.6K

30+ days:  $20K ($10K FEMA;  $3K WIP III; $ 3K HUD COC; $2K CZM & $1.7K SP Rural)
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Monthly Financial Report : George Washinton Regional Commission

Divisional Results

Economic & Environmental DevelopmentActual Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance

Income 59,037      299,256    (240,219)           619,553 1,197,023     (577,469)      

Expenses 59,037      299,256    (240,219)           619,553 1,197,023     (577,469)      

Surplus (Deficit) -           0               (0)                      0 0                   (0)                 

GW RideConnect Actual Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance

Income 47,264      53,586      (6,322)               182,593 214,345        (31,752)        

Expenses 47,264      53,583      (6,318)               182,592 214,331        (31,739)        

Surplus (Deficit) -           3               (3)                      0 14                 (13)               

MPO/PL Actual Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance

Income 56,578      102,515    (45,937)             281,177 477,195        (196,018)      

Expenses 56,578      102,306    (45,728)             281,177 478,862        (197,685)      

Surplus (Deficit) -           208           (208)                  0 (1,667)          1,667            

Human Services Actual Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance

Income 24,602      96,825      (72,223)             129,830 387,298        (257,468)      

Expenses 24,602      96,825      (72,223)             129,830 387,298        (257,468)      

Surplus (Deficit) -           (0)             0                       0 (0)                 0                   

SP Rural Transportation Actual Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance

Income 4,900        6,042        (1,141)               18,949 24,167          (5,218)          

Expenses 4,900        6,042        (1,141)               18,949 24,167          (5,218)          

Surplus (Deficit) -           -           -                    0 0                   (0)                 

Completed 33.52% of work budgeted Year to Date as of  10.31.22 FY23.

Completed 78.40% of work budgeted Year to Date as of  10.31.22 FY23.

Current Month Year to Date

Completed 51.75%% of work budgeted Year to Date as of 10.31.22 FY23.

Completed 85.18% of work budgeted Year to Date as of  10.31.22 FY23.

Completed 58.92% of work budgeted Year to Date as of 10.31.22 FY23.



George Washington Regional Commission - Cash Flow 10/31/22 FY23

Cash Out Profit / Loss Ending Cash on HandBeginning Cash on Hand Cash In

430,655.75 427,576.47 200,589.95 226,986.52 657,642.27
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7c.ii. Regional Water Supply Planning Regulations Update 





Water Supply Planning 
Regulatory Process Update

Ryan Green
Virginia Department of Environmental Quality
November 28, 2022



Water Supply Planning Program Background

3

• Multiyear drought (1999-2002)
o Impacted water supply across Virginia.
o Established new Drought of Record for 

much of the state

• “Focusing Event” – for creation of 
new law and regulation: 
o Legislation passed by General Assembly
o Executive Order creating the Virginia 

Drought Assessment and Response Plan
o Local and Regional Water Supply Planning 

Regulation
o Program based around local 

responsibilities with state evaluation and 
oversight.



Water Supply Planning Program Background

4

• 9VAC25-780 – effective November 2005
o local govts must submit local water supply plan OR participate in regional
o Demand reviewed/revised no later than five years; Plans after compliance 

determination. 
o Plans must be resubmitted every 10 years.

• What’s in a Plan?
o Description of existing sources, water use, and resource conditions
o Assessment of projected demand
o Description of water management actions 
o Drought response and contingency plans 
o Statement of need (adequacy of existing sources to meet demand)
o Alternatives Analysis (how to address deficits)
o Must be adopted by local government 

https://law.lis.virginia.gov/admincodeexpand/title9/agency25/chapter780/


Background on the proposed amendments

• House Bill 542 (2020) and HB1297 (2022) - Amended 
§§ 62.1-44.36, 62.1-44.38, and 62.1-44.38:1

• New statutory language required several key changes:
• Requirement to plan regionally; designation of regional planning 

areas and mechanism to request a change.
• Process to involve other stakeholders in plan development.
• Requirement for plans to identify region’s “Water Supply Risks” 

and propose regional strategies to address those risks.
• NOIRA published June 7, 2021; Regulatory Advisory Panel 

concluded April 6, 2022; SWCB on June 22, 2022.

5

https://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?201+sum+HB542
http://law.lis.virginia.gov/vacode/62.1-44.36
http://law.lis.virginia.gov/vacode/62.1-44.38
http://law.lis.virginia.gov/vacode/62.1-44.38:1


What Does the Proposed Regulation Do?

• Requires that localities plan regionally, 
• Designates regional planning areas based primarily on river basin,  
• Identifies the planning area in which locality shall participate, 
• Allows increased participation in plan development of stakeholders and 

public,
• Creates requirements for the identification of water supply risks and 

strategies to address those risks, 
• Revises the water supply plan development, submission, and review 

procedures to align with the new requirements, and
• Clarifies the roles and responsibilities of localities, stakeholders, and the 

Department.



Proposed Regional Planning Areas

Northern Piedmont 2 – Spotsylvania, Stafford, 
City of Fredericksburg 

Northern Coastal Plain 3 – Caroline, King 
George



Proposed Regional Planning Areas



Plan Development Responsibilities – Use/Source 
Information and Statement of Need and Alternatives

Local Governments 
compile and provide Info:

• Existing Sources
• Existing Water Use 

• Existing Water Resource Info
• Projected Demands

Regional planning unit 
Incorporates into 

Regional Plan

DEQ Provides Information
• Existing Sources

• Existing Water Use 
• Existing Water Resource Info

Local Governments determine if 
existing sources meet 

current/future demands and 
identify range of alternatives to 

address local deficits 

Regional planning unit 
completes statement of 
need and alternatives 

analysis and incorporates 
into Regional Plan 



Plan Development and Public/Stakeholder Participation 
Responsibilities

Each local government 
designates a 

representative/alternate for 
plan development process. 

If PDC notifies DEQ of intent to coordinate 
local government participation, PDC 

assumes the above responsibilities. DEQ 
invited to participate at “kick-off” meetings.  

DEQ assembles, maintains, and 
distributes rep. list. DEQ 

convenes “kick-off” meeting 
within 180 days of regulation.

Each local government consults 
and coordinates with community 
water systems and self-supplied 

users > 300,000 gal month. 

Regional planning units develop and 
implement process for participation of other 

stakeholders. 

Regional Planning Units or 
Local Governments:

Public Notice of draft Plans 
in paper of general 

circulation in each local 
government.  Can be jointly 

noticed.  

Hold informational meetings 
when 15 or more requests 

received. 



Plan Development Responsibilities – Water Demand 
Management, Drought Plans, and Water Supply Risks.

Local Governments Provide 
Information on Existing 

Water Demand 
Management Activities

Regional Planning Unit incorporates 
information into regional plan.

Regional planning unit evaluates and 
identifies regional strategies to address each 

water supply risk.

Local Governments 
develop Drought Response 

and Contingency Plans.

Regional Planning Unit incorporates local 
drought plans into regional plan and 

evaluates feasibility of regional drought plan. 

Regional planning unit 
identifies water supply 

risks. Local governments 
may also identify risks.



Role of Planning District Commissions (or other existing 
planning arrangements)

• PDCs are encouraged to play a role and participate in the 
regional planning units

• PDCs can be conveners of the regional planning unit kick-off 
meetings



Next steps in regulatory process

1. Proposed Regulation goes to executive review (we are here)
3.  If approved, proposed reg. published in Virginia Register for              

Public Comment.
4.  Based on comments, DEQ finalizes reg. & presents to SWCB
5.  If approved -> executive review 
6. If approved -> final reg. published in Virginia Register and final public 

comment before regulation becomes effective (barring objections or 
suspensions).

Proposed reg. requires plan submittal 5 years within effective date of the 
regulation.

Until reg is updated to comply with statute, water supply plans should not be 
updated/resubmitted. 
13



Questions?
Contact for General Program Questions

Ryan Green – Ryan.Green@deq.virginia.gov, 804-698-4258

Contact for Local or Regional Water Supply Questions

Hannah Somers – Hannah.Somers@deq.virginia.gov, 804-814-2780



RAP Membership

• Whitney Katchmark (Hampton 
Roads Planning District 
Commission)

• Pam Kenel (Loudoun Water)

• Ross Phillips (City of Richmond)

• Eric Lawrence (Frederick County)

• Chad Neese (Southside PDC)

• Michael Ward (Henry County 
Public Utilities)

• Robert Cornett (Washington 
County Service Authority)

• Kevin Byrd (New River Valley 
Regional Commission)

• Pamela Baughman (VA Rural 
Water Association/Louisa County 
Water Authority)

• Jon Brindle (Stafford County)

• James Maupin (Virginia Water Well 
Association)

• Erin Reilly (James River 
Association)

• Jay Ford (Chesapeake Bay 
Foundation)

• Martha Moore (VA Farm Bureau)

• Kyle Shreve (Virginia Agribusiness 
Council)

• Brett Vassey (Virginia 
Manufacturer’s Association)

• Elizabeth Povar (Economic 
Development)

• Eldon James (VA Chapter 
American Planning 

Association/Rappahannock River 
Basin Commission )

• Leigh Mitchell (Virginia Regional 
Tribal Operations Committee)

• Dwayne Roadcap (Virginia 
Department of Health)

• Amy Martin (Virginia Department of 
Wildlife Resources)

• Randy Owen (Virginia Marine 
Resources Commission)

• Anne Doyle (Accomack-
Northampton PDC)

• Greg Prelewicz (Fairfax Water)

• Scott Morris (Virginia Municipal 
Drinking Water Association / 
Chesterfield County Department of 
Utilities)





8a. Resolution 23-03: Personnel Policy Amendments 



George Washington Regional Commission 
406 Princess Anne Street 

Fredericksburg, Virginia 22401 
(540) 373-2890 

Fax (540) 899-4808 
www.gwregion.org 

CAROLINE COUNTY       CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG       KING GEORGE COUNTY     SPOTSYLVANIA COUNTY       STAFFORD COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 23-03 

EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK, PERSONNEL POLICIES 

WHEREAS, the George Washington Regional Commission (“the Commission”) is the Planning 
District Commission serving the City of Fredericksburg and Caroline, King George, Spotsylvania and 
Stafford counties, known together as Planning District 16; and 

WHEREAS, the Commission understands that it is their role to establish organizational policy, 
establish organizational mission and vision, provide proper financial oversight and delegate broad 
management duties to the Executive Director whose role is to provide day-to-day operational 
management of the agency; and  

WHEREAS, in establishing organizational policy, the Commission adopts and amends a set of 
personnel policies through an Employee Handbook that govern personnel related actions for fairness 
and equity while meeting minimum regulatory standards; and  

WHEREAS, the Commission revised the GWRC Employee Handbook most recently on January 25, 
2021; and 

WHEREAS, the GWRC Employee Handbook should be routinely reviewed and updated as needed 
meeting changing circumstances, changes in workforce, and changes in laws and regulations; and   

WHEREAS, GWRC staff is recommending a comprehensive review of the current Employee 
Handbook by reviewing and updating the Handbook a few policies at a time until a complete review 
and update is completed and approved; and 

WHEREAS, GWRC staff recommends the attached amendments of revisions and replacements to 
the current Handbook that include: Driver’s License and Records Check Policy, Travel Policy, Dress 
Code Policy, and Professional Association Membership and Trainings Policy; and  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the George Washington Regional Commission 
that it hereby approves the attached amendments for Driver’s License and Records Check Policy, 
Travel Policy, Dress Code Policy, and Professional Association Membership and Trainings Policy to 
the GWRC Employee Handbook as previously amended January 25, 2021to be effective immediately 
upon passage. 

Adopted by the George Washington Regional Commission at its duly called meeting on January 23, 
2023 in the City of Fredericksburg, Virginia, a quorum being present. 

___________________________________________ 
Jason Graham, Chair January 23, 2023 



 

 

Driver’s License and Records Check Policy 

Current Policy 

No current policy in place. 

Proposed New Policy 

Driver’s License and Records Check Policy 

Policy and Purposes by the Commission 

This policy is to establish the requirement that all GWRC employees, student interns, and volunteers 

who operate GWRC owned vehicles, leased/rented vehicles, or private vehicles used for GWRC official 

purposes and business possess a valid, verifiable driver's license in the Commonwealth of Virginia, state 

of legal residence, or the District of Columbia. This policy does not assume that all employees are 

authorized to drive GWRC vehicles or private vehicles for GWRC use, and as such all employees are 

subject to the checks and verifications outlined by policy and procedures. 

Drivers using personal vehicles must maintain and show proof of required coverage of automobile 

liability insurance before driving on behalf of the GWRC. All drivers driving on behalf of the GWRC may 

be required to provide a current driving record and a current vehicle safety inspection.  

The Executive Director shall establish procedures to ensure compliance with the provisions of this policy.  

Travel Policy 

Current Policy 

WORK RELATED EXPENSES 

Reimbursement of Personal Expenses 

If you are required to use your personal automobile to attend meetings or if you are required to work 

assignments outside of the office, you will be reimbursed in accordance with the current Internal 

Revenue Service (IRS) mileage reimbursement rate.  Mileage to out-of-office meetings or work locations 

will be reimbursed whether the employee leaves from the office or from home.  Similarly, mileage 

accumulated by returning from a late afternoon or evening meeting directly to the employee’s home 

will also be reimbursed.  Under no circumstances may an employee seek reimbursement for mileage 

from his or her home to their regular place of work. 

Normal out-of-pocket expenses (such as meals, tolls, etc.) will also be reimbursed when the 

reimbursement request is accompanied by a dated receipt.  All reimbursement requests, including those 

for mileage, must be approved by the employee’s immediate supervisor or the Executive Director and 

should be submitted no later than the timesheet submittal date for the last pay period of the month in 

which the expenses were made.   

Proposed New Policy 

Travel Policy 



 

 

Policy and Purposes by the Commission 

This policy is established to provide consistent guidelines and procedures pertaining to the authorization 

of business travel and the advance payment or reimbursement of actual, reasonable, and necessary 

travel expenses incurred while conducting official GWRC business. This policy is closely modelled on the 

Commonwealth of Virginia’s Department of Transportation Travel, Lodging & Meal policy, with some 

variance to address the unique needs and desires of the Commission, our staff, and the community.  

It is GWRC policy that all travel outside of routine assigned duties be approved in advance by a Director 

and that overnight travel, including allowable expenses, be approved in advance by the Executive 

Director. 

It is GWRC policy to advance or reimburse employees, student interns, Board Members, volunteers, and 

other partners for necessary and reasonable travel expenses incurred while conducting official GWRC 

business or representing the GWRC at authorized events.  

Individual meals and incidentals will only be reimbursed in instances of approved overnight travel. 

Allowable costs will be based upon predetermined rates utilizing the most recent Internal Revenue 

Service (IRS) rate for milage reimbursement and the General Services Administration (GSA) rates for 

lodging, meals, and incidentals, with exceptions for special circumstances. Under no circumstances will 

alcohol be a permissible expense. Responsibility for legitimacy and supporting documentation of 

reimbursable expenses rests with the traveler. The GWRC relies on the honesty and integrity of those 

traveling to prevent excessive expenditures and reimbursements. Any falsification of expenditures 

constitutes fraud and shall be treated as such. Penalties for misuse may include employment 

termination and/or criminal prosecution. 

Individuals are expected to exercise prudent judgment when making travel arrangements and 

expenditures. Travel expense reports are open to the public and should be able to sustain the test of 

public review.  

The Executive Director shall establish procedures to ensure compliance with the provisions of this policy. 

 

  



 

 

Dress Code Policy 

Current Policy 

Dress Code 

You are expected at all times to present a neat, professional, business-like image and to exercise good 

judgment in applying our dress code policy.  As always, if you interact with guests or are representing 

the Commission outside the office, you should dress appropriately for the standards of the organization 

you are visiting or the function you are attending. 

The Commission’s normal dress standard is “business casual," which is less formal than traditional 

business attire but “dressier” than normal weekend attire.  For example, appropriate business casual 

attire would include knit collared shirts, skirts, casual pants, etc.  Examples of inappropriate attire 

include, but are not limited to blue jeans, T-shirts, flip-flops (men), shorts, sneakers, mini-skirts, cropped 

shirts, halter tops, athletic wear (warm-up suits, jerseys, etc.), form-fitting outfits (spandex), sweatshirts 

and tank tops (men), and any form of clothing that is revealing, tattered, torn, dirty or that carries an 

offensive message (such as profanity or graphic sexual imagery).  In cases such as when an employee is 

required to perform maintenance or office organization tasks, or will conduct fieldwork outdoors in 

conditions under which normal office attire would be inappropriate, denim jeans and/or sneakers may 

be worn.   

If you do come to work in unacceptable attire, the Executive Director may instruct you to go home and 

change clothes and then return to work in acceptable attire.  Employees who consistently violate the 

Commission’s dress code will be subject to disciplinary action. 

Proposed New Policy 

Dress Code Policy 

Policy and Purposes by the Commission 

Employees are always expected to present a neat, professional, business-like image and to exercise 

good judgment in applying the dress code policy.  As always, if you interact with guests at the office or 

are representing the Commission outside the office, including virtual video interactions, you should 

dress appropriately for the standards of the organization you are visiting or the function you are 

attending or the attendees of the meeting. The Commission’s normal dress standard is “smart casual," 

which is a dress code that combines well-fitting, professional business wear with elements of trendy, 

comfortable, casual attire. 

In cases such as when an employee is required to perform office organization tasks or conduct work 

outdoors in conditions under which normal office attire would be inappropriate, more casual, but still 

appropriate attire is permissible. 

If you do come to work in unacceptable attire, a Director or Supervisor may instruct you to go home and 

change clothes and then return to work in acceptable attire. Employees who consistently violate the 

Commission’s dress code will be subject to disciplinary action. 

The Executive Director shall establish procedures to ensure compliance with the provisions of this policy.  



 

 

Professional Association Membership and Trainings Policy 

Current Policy 

Professional Association Membership 

Within budgetary constraints, GWRC will pay for one professional association membership (such as the 

American Planning Association, American Institute of Certified Planners, Institute of Transportation 

Engineers, etc.) for each planning or professional staff member.  Approval for such memberships rests 

solely with the Executive Director.  If you are interested in pursuing a professional membership, contact 

your immediate supervisor or the Executive Director.   

Proposed New Policy 

Professional Association Membership and Trainings Policy 

This policy is established to provide consistent guidelines and procedures pertaining to staff professional 

development through association and civic memberships and relevant training activities.  

I. “Individual Memberships and Certifications in Professional and Civic Associations and Organizations” - 

Within budgetary constraints and budget approvals, GWRC will pay for professional or civic association 

memberships for any regular full-time employee. Certification, certification training and state affiliation 

membership may be included if part of a larger association membership. Approval for such 

memberships rest solely with the Executive Director.  

II. “Individual Training, Classes and Education” - Within budgetary constraints and budget approvals, 

GWRC will pay for participation in individual trainings, conferences, and other non-degree educational 

opportunities which promote professional or technical interests for regular and temporary full-time and 

part-time employees.  

Participation or membership in an organization or training must benefit both the individual and the 

GWRC and should not interfere with the employee’s performance or productivity. 

It is the Executive Director’s responsibility to ensure budgetary allowance for all professional 

development approvals. 

Higher education degree tuition reimbursement policies and procedures will be defined in a separate 

policy. 

The Executive Director shall establish procedures to ensure compliance with the provisions of this policy.  

 



8b. Calendar Year 2023 GWRC Meeting Schedule (ACTION ITEM) 



George Washington Regional Commission 
406 Princess Anne Street 

Fredericksburg, Virginia 22401 

(540) 373-2890 
Fax (540) 899-4808 

www.gwregion.org 

CAROLINE COUNTY    CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG    KING GEORGE COUNTY    SPOTSYLVANIA COUNTY    STAFFORD COUNTY

CALENDAR YEAR 2023 
COMMISSION MEETING SCHEDULE 

406 Princess Anne Street 
Fredericksburg, VA 22401 

January, 2023 6:00 PM 

February 27, 2023 6:00 PM 

March 27, 2023 6:00 PM 

April 24, 2023 6:00 PM 

May 22, 2023 6:00 PM 
Proposed Budget Approval 

June 26, 2023  6:00 PM 
Annual Meeting - Officer Elections 

July No Meeting 

August 28, 2023 6:00 PM 

September 25, 2023 6:00 PM 
Local Government Contribution Rate Request Approval 

October 23, 2023 6:00 PM 

November 27, 2023 6:00 PM (Monday after Thanksgiving) 

December,2023 No Meeting 
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Independent Auditors’ Report 

To the Board of Commissioners 
 Regional Commission 

F  Virginia 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinions 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the government-type activities and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of George Washington Regional Commission as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
George Washington Regional Commission’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.   

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the business-type activities and the aggregate remaining fund information of George 
Washington Regional Commission, as of June 30, 2022, and the changes in financial position, and, where 
applicable,  cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinions 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the Specifications for Audits of Authorities, Boards, 
and Commissions, issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of George Washington 
Regional Commission, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical 
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.  

Change in Accounting Principle 

As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, in 2022, the Commission adopted new accounting 
guidance, GASB Statement Nos. 87, Leases and 92, Omnibus. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this 
matter.   

Restatement of Beginning Balances 

As described in Note 14 to the financial statements, in 2022, the Commission restated beginning balances 
for net pension and OPEB liabilities. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.   

1
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Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about George Washington Regional 
Commission’s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond June 30, 2022, including any 
currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that 
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and 
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards, Governmental Auditing Standards, and the Specifications for Audits of Authorities, Boards, and 
Commissions will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the 
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial 
statements. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Governmental Auditing 
Standards, and the Specifications for Audits of Authorities, Boards, and Commissions, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures 
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of George Washington Regional Commission’s internal control. Accordingly, no such 
opinion is expressed. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about George Washington Regional Commission’s ability to continue as a 
going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 
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Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis as listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing 
the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not 
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise George Washington Regional Commission’s basic financial statements. The supplementary 
information and schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic 
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and 
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the 
supplementary information and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated, in all 
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated DRAFT, on our 
consideration of George Washington Regional Commission’s internal control over financial reporting and on 
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and 
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of George Washington Regional Commission’s internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering George Washington Regional Commission’s internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance. 

Fredericksburg, Virginia 
DRAFT 
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 

 

 

 
 

In this section of the annual financial report of the George Washington Regional Commission 
("GWRC" or the "Commission"), the Commission's management provides a narrative discussion 
and an analysis of its financial activities for the fiscal year that ended June 30, 2022. 
Responsibility for the accuracy of the data as well as the completeness and fairness of this 
presentation (including all disclosures) rests with management. To the best of our knowledge and 
belief, the data contained herein is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner 
designed to fairly represent the Commission's financial position and the result of operations of its 
various funds. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an accurate understanding 
of the Commission's financial activities have been included. The Commission's financial 
performance is discussed and analyzed within the context of the accompanying financial 
statements and disclosures following this section. 

 
Overview of the Financial Statements 

 
The financial statements presented herein included all of the activities of the Commission using 
the integrated approach as prescribed by GASB Statement No. 34. Management's Discussion and 
Analysis (MD&A) is intended to introduce the Commission's financial statements. In addition to 
this MD&A, this annual report consists of the basic financial statements (including government-
wide financial statements as well as fund and fiduciary financial statements) and notes to the 
financial statements. The Commission also includes in this report additional information to 
supplement the basic financial statements. 

 
Both government-wide financial statements distinguish the governmental activities of the 
Commission - which are principally supported by locality contributions and governmental 
revenues such as grants - from business-type activities which are intended to recover all or a 
significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges. 

 
Basic Financial Statements 

 
The Statement of Net Position presents information on all the Commission's assets, liabilities and 
net 

, Position. Over time, increases and decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of 
whether the financial position of the Commission is improving or deteriorating. 

 
The Statement of Activities shows the actual revenues and expenditures of the Commission for 
Fiscal Year 2022 and the resulting change in net position. 

 
In May or June of each year the Commission adopts an annual operating budget for the upcoming 
fiscal year beginning on July 1st. A budgetary comparison has been provided to demonstrate 
compliance with the budget by comparing actual revenues and expenditures to those budgeted for 
the fiscal year, and the resulting variance is calculated. 

 
Finally, the resulting excess of revenues over expenditures is added (or subtracted if expenditures 
exceeded revenues) from the fund balance at the beginning of the fiscal year. This determines the 
net asset balance for the new fiscal year. 
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 

 

 

 
The Notes to Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the statement of financial position and the statement of 
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance statements. 
 

Government-Wide Financial Analysis
 

Summary Statements of Net Position  June 30, 2022 and 2021 
 

2022 2021*
Assets
Current Assets $ 1,004,666        $ 834,973           
Capital Assets (net) 583,983           647,148           

Total assets $ 1,588,649        $ 1,482,121        

Deferred Outflows of Resources: $ 276,736           $ 60,506             

Liabilities $ 1,156,588        $ 1,441,033        

Deferred Inflows of Resources: $ 317,110           $ 4,919               

Net Position
Investment in capital assets $ 13,689             $ 17,173             
Unrestricted 377,998           79,502             

Total net position $ 391,687           $ 96,675             

Net Postion
Table 1

 
 
*Beginning balances have been restated to reflect leased equipment due to the implementation of GASB 
87, Net pension and OPEB liabilities. 
 

Current assets are comprised of cash and investments and grants receivable. These resources are 
available to the Commission for ongoing operations. In FY 2022: 

 
• The Commission's assets exceeded its liabilities by $391,687 (net position). This compares to 

the previous year, when assets exceeded liabilities by $96,675. This represents an increase of 
295,012. This is a reflection of/due to continued efforts to increase fund balance through 
prudent spending. 

 
• The Commission's governmental funds reported total ending fund balance of $691,633 in FY 

2022. This compares to the prior year ending fund balance of $559,200 indicating an increase 
of $132,433 in the fund balance during FY 2022. 
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 

 

 

 
Capital assets consist solely of furniture, office equipment, leasehold improvements, leased 
building and other durable goods used for the operation of the Commission. It should be noted 
that assets purchased with funds from a grantor may revert to said grantor in the event the program 
for which the assets were purchased is discontinued. However, this option has not been exercised 
by any agency providing funding to the Commission. 

 
Liabilities are the obligations of the Commission. This category includes accounts payable, 
accrued expenses, compensated absences, deferred revenue, lease liability, net pension and OPEB 
liabilities.  

Summary Statements of Activities For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021. 

2022 2021*

Revenues
Intergovermental $ 1,682,276         $ 2,847,125         
Local assessments 231,602            180,899            
Other 74                     -                   

Total revenue 1,913,878         3,028,024         

Expenses
Planning and community development 1,618,940         3,291,380         
Interest on long-term debt -                   

 Total expenses 1,618,940         3,291,380         

Change in net position 295,012            (263,356)          
Net position at beginning of year 96,675              360,031            
Net position at end of year $ 391,687            $ 96,675              

Table 2
Changes in Net Position

 
 

*Beginning balances have been restated to reflect leased equipment due to the implementation of GASB 
87, Net pension and OPEB liabilities. 

 
As indicated in the preceding statement there was an increase in net position of $164,563 from 
FY 2020 to FY 2021. This is a reflection of/due to continued efforts to increase fund balance 
through prudent spending. 
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 

 

 

 
 

GWRC Activities 
 
Economic Factors and Development of the Fiscal Year 2023 Budget 

 
Planning District 16, which is served by the George Washington Regional Commission, is the 
fifth- largest and second-fastest-growing of Virginia's 21 planning districts. Since the adoption of 
the "Amended and Restated Charter Agreement of the George Washington Regional Commission" 
in 2006, which itself was largely a response to the rapid growth of the region, the Commission's 
programs have expanded significantly to more proactively address the myriad issues facing 
Planning District 16 and to assist its member localities as they address many of the same issues in 
their own jurisdictions. It is anticipated that this level of effort will be maintained into the 
foreseeable future. 

 
Every effort is made on the part of the Commission's administration to accurately predict revenues 
and expenses for the upcoming year so that staff can provide the Board with the most reliable 
estimates possible for the purpose of budgeting. To this end, factors such as regional and state 
economic indicators, historical spending and revenue levels, and projected population growth are 
considered during the budget development process. The budget is routinely monitored and 
adjusted for changes in revised or new program funds. 

 
Presently, management of the Commission is not aware of any significant changes in conditions 
that would have a significant effect on the financial position or results of activity of the 
Commission in the near future. 
 
Future Budgetary Planning 

 
Management had become extremely concerned with the loss of Agency Fund Balance around FY 
2007. Under direct consultation with the GWRC Board as well the agency's auditor, management 
developed a plan to increase the financial viability of the organization. 

 
To that end management will continue to make recommendations to explore areas of budgetary 
saving by studying true staff needs and ability to fund positions and provide adequate fringe 
benefits for those positions. 

 
GWRC staff has implemented a new classification and compensation plan that appears to be 
stabilizing the staffing tenure. With participation of the new auditing firm, in FY23 staff is working 
with Virginia Association of Planning District Commissions (VAPDC) to pursue classification 
and implementation of indirect cost approvals. 
 
Management will continue to explore new revenue options to expand our regional presence by 
providing enhanced services to our members. New programs and efforts will be aligned with the 
updated GWRC Strategic Plan adopted in early 2022. 
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 

 

 

 
 
Contacting the Commission's Financial Management 

 
This financial report was prepared to provide a general overview of the Commission's finances, to 
comply with finance-related laws and regulations, and to demonstrate the Commission's 
commitment to public accountability. If you have questions about this report or would like to 
request additional information, please direct your inquiry to the following address: 

 
Chip Boyles, Executive Director 
George Washington Regional Commission 
406 Princess Anne Street 
Fredericksburg, VA 22401 
(540) 642-1580 
chip.boyles@gwregion.org 
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DRAFTNANCIAL STATEMENTSANCIAL STA



Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 631,176
Due from other governments 373,490         
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 583,983         

Total assets $ 1,588,649      

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Pension related items $ 245,890         
OPEB related items 30,846          

Total deferred outflows of resources $ 276,736         

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 12,808          
Unearned revenue 300,225         
Long-term liabilities:

Due within one year 108,740         
Due in more than one year 522,706         
Net pension liability 156,998         
Net OPEB liability 55,111          

Total liabilities $ 1,156,588      

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Pension related items $ 296,307         
OPEB related items 20,803          

Total deferred inflows of resources $ 317,110         

Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets $ 13,689          
Unrestricted 377,998         

Total net position $ 391,687         

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

At  JUNE 30, 2022

Govermental 
Activities
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Net (Expense)
Revenue and
Changes in

Net Position
George Washington

Operating Capital Regional Commision
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental

Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities

Govermental Activities

Planning and community development $ 1,607,005          $ 1,682,276          $ 231,602             $ -                    $ 306,873                     
Interest on long-term debt 11,935              -                    -                    -                    (11,935)                      

Total Govermental Activities $ 1,618,940          $ 1,682,276          $ 231,602             $ -                    294,938                     

General revenues:
  Unrestricted revenues from use of money and property $ 74                              
  Total general revenues $ 74                              
Change in net position $ 295,012                     
Net position - beginning of year, as restated 96,675                       
Net position - ending $ 391,687                     

Program Activities

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION

Program Revenues
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

DRAFTCIAL STATEMENTS TATEME



Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 631,176
Due from other governments 373,490

Total Assets $ 1,004,666      

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 12,808
Unearned revenue 300,225

Total Liabilities $ 313,033         

FUND BALANCE
Nonspendable $
Unassigned 691,633

Total Fund Balance $ 691,633         

Total liabilities and fund balance $ 1,004,666      

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION

AT JUNE 30, 2022
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
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Fund balances - total governmental funds $ 691,633      

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. $ 583,983      

Deferred outflows of resources are not available to pay for current-period
expenditures and, therefore, arenot reported in the funds.

Pension related items $ 245,890      
OPEB related items 30,846        276,736      

Long-term liabilities, applicable to the Commission's governmental activities are not 
due and payable in the current perdio and accordingly are not reported as fund liabilities.
Balance of long-term liabilities affecting net position are as follows:

Accrued leave $ (61,152)       
Net pension liability (156,998)     
Net OPEB liability (55,111)       
Lease liability (570,294)     (843,555)     

Deferred inflows of resources are not adue and payable in the current-period
and, therefore, arenot reported in the funds.

Pension related items (296,307)     
OPEB related items (20,803)       (317,110)     

Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 391,687      

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

AT JUNE 30, 2022
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Operating revenues:
Federal $ 773,268
State 756,656
Local 231,602
Miscellaneous 152,352

Total operating revenues $ 1,913,878        

Operating expenses:
Personnel $ 1,081,938
Subgrants 100,448
Consultant and professional fees 232,786
Conferences, training and travel 18,415
Equipment 5,719
Information technology 63,194
Insurance 3,398
Marketing and public relations 143,193
Meetings 7,588
Membership dues and subscriptions 9,987
Miscellaneous 1,783
Occupancy 81,433
Office supplies 9,762
Postage 1,522
Telephone and internet 8,418

Total operating expenses $ 1,769,584        

Operating income (loss) $ 144,294           

Nonoperating revenue (expenses):
Interest income $ 74
Interest expense (11,935)           

Total nonoperating revenue (expenses) $ (11,861)           

Change in net position $ 132,433           
Net position, beginning of year 559,200           
Net position, end of year $ 691,633           

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

YEAR END JUNE 30, 2022
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Net Changes in Fund Balance - Total Governmental Funds $ 132,433      

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. 
However, in the statrement of activties the cost of those asset 
is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays
exceeded depreciation in the current period. The following details 
support this adjustment

Capital outlay $ 8,785        
Depreciation expense (71,950)     $ (63,165)       

Bond and capital lease proceeds are reported as financing sources 
in governmental funds and thus contribute to the change in fund
balance.  In the statement of net position, however, issuing debt increases 
the long term liabilities and does not affect the statement of activities.
Similarly, the repayment of principal is an expenditure in the 
governmental funds but reduces the liability in the
statement of net position.

Repayments:
Lease liability $ 59,681        

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting used in the 
governmental funds, expenditures are not recognized for 
transactions that are not normally paid with expendable financial 
resources.  In the statement of activities, however, which is 
presented on the accrual basis, expenses and liabilities are reported 
regardless of when financial resources are available.  In addition, 
interest on long term debt is not recognized under the modified 
accrual basis of accounting until due, rather than as it accrues.  
This adjustment combines the net changes of the following:

Compensated absences $ (9,373)       
Pension expense 167,178    
OPEB expense 8,258        166,063      

Change in net position reported on the Statement of Activity $ 295,012      

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION
RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2022
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Mary Washington GO 
Virginia Region 6 

Council
AdVANtage Self-

Insurance Program

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ -                           $ 32,649

Total assets $ -                           $ 32,649                      

Liabilities:
Unearned revenue $ -                           $ 32,649                      

Net Position:

Total net position $ -                           $ -                           

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION

At  JUNE 30, 2022
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

Custodial Funds
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Mary Washington 
GO Virginia Region 

6 Council
AdVANtage Self-

Insurance Program

Additions:
Contributions

State Grant Revenue $ 812,250                  $ -                         
Insurance premiums -                         420,512                  

Total contributions 812,250                  420,512                  

Investment earnings
Interest $ -                         $ 58                          

Total investment earnings $ -                         $ 58                          

Total additions $ 812,250                  $ 420,570                  

Deductions:
Personnel $ 165,992                  $ -                         
Subgrants 571,350                  -                         
Insurance premiums -                         420,570                  
Consultant and professional fees 65,672                   -                         
Conferences, training and travel 2,006                     -                         
Information technology 4,121                     -                         
Marketing and public relations 2,138                     -                         
Meetings 879                        -                         
Office supplies 92                          -                         

Total deductions $ 812,250                  $ 420,570                  

Change in net position $ -                         $ -                         
Net Position, beginning of year -                         -                         
Net Position, end of year $ -                         $ -                         

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Custodial Funds

YEAR END JUNE 30, 2022
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The financial statements of George Washington Regional Commission (Commission) conform to generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) applicable to governmental units promulgated by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB).  The following is a summary of the more significant polices: 

A. Financial Reporting Entity

The Rappahannock Area Development Commission, Planning District 16, (RADCO or the Commission) was
established on January 1, 1970 under the Virginia Area Development Act (Title 15.1, Chapter 34,
Sections 15.1 - 1400, et. seq., Code of Virginia (1950) as amended). The Commission promotes,
encourages and assists the counties of Caroline, King George, Spotsylvania, Stafford and the City of
Fredericksburg in planning for the orderly and efficient development for the future and such other
activities as determined by the Commission. RADCO was renamed George Washington Regional
Commission (GWRC or Commission) on October l, 2006.

B. Government-wide Statements and Fund Financial Statements

The Commission’s basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the Commission 
as a whole) and fund financial statements.  Both the government-wide and fund financial statements 
categorize primary activities as either governmental or business-type.  The Commission’s general 
administrative services are classified as governmental activities.  The Commission has no business-type 
activities at this time. 

In the government-wide statement of net position, both the governmental and business-type activities 
columns (if any) are presented on a consolidated basis by column and are reported on a full accrual 
economic resource basis which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term debt 
and obligations.  The Commission’s net position is reported in three parts – net investment in capital 
assets, restricted net position, and unrestricted net position. 

The government-wide statement of activities reports both the gross and net cost of each of the 
Commission’s functions.  The functions are also supported by general government revenues.  The 
statement of activities reduces gross expenses (including depreciation) by related program revenues and 
operating and capital grants.  Program revenues must be directly associated with the function. 
Operating grants include operating-specific and discretionary (either operating or capital) grants, while 
the capital grants column reflects capital-specific grants. 

The net costs (by function) are normally covered by general revenue (intergovernmental revenues, 
interest income, etc.). 

The Commission allocates indirect costs using a specific percentage of use method. 

This government-wide focus is on the sustainability of the Commission as an entity and the change in the 
Commission’s net position resulting from the current year’s activities. 

The financial transactions of the Commission are reported in individual funds in the fund statements. 
Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprises its 
assets, liabilities, reserves, fund balance, revenues, and expenses.  The various funds are reported by 
generic classification within the financial statements. 
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 REGIONAL COMMISSION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 (CONTINUED) 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:  (CONTINUED) 

B. Government-wide Statements and Fund Financial Statements:  (continued)

The following fund types are used by the Commission: 

Governmental Funds: 

The focus of the governmental funds measurement (in the fund statements) is upon determination of 
financial position and changes in financial position (sources, uses, and balances of financial resources) 
rather than upon net income.  The following is a description of the governmental funds of the 
Commission: 

General Fund is the general operating fund of the Commission.  It is used to account for and report 
all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

Fiduciary Fund Types – (Trust and Custodial Funds): 

Fiduciary Funds (Trust and Custodial Funds) account for assets held in a trustee capacity or as custodian 
for individuals, private organizations, or other governmental units. The Commission reports the following 
Fiduciary Funds: 

Mary Washington Go Virginia Region 6 Council Custodial Fund: This fund provides assistance to 
encourage regional cooperation among business, education, and government on strategic, economic, and 
workforce development efforts is accounted for in essentially the same manner as a proprietary fund 
type. 

AdVANtage Self-Insurance Program: This fund provides affordable liability, uninsured motorist and 
physical damage protection for commuter vanpools. Vanpools that are licensed and registered in the 
Commonwealth of Virginia are eligible to become members. Vanpool owners join by paying annual 
membership fees to the pool that they would traditionally make payments to in the form of premiums. 
These fees are used to self-insure the AdVANtage member vanpools. The goal of the AdVANtage Program 
is to ensure that current vanpools remain in service and to encourage the formation of new vanpools. 

C. Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenues or expenses are recognized in the accounts and
reported in the financial statements.  It relates to the timing of the measurements made regardless of
the measurement focus applied.

1. Accrual – Governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements are presented on the
accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized
when incurred.

2. Modified Accrual – The governmental funds financial statements are presented on the modified
accrual basis of accounting.  Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded
when susceptible to accrual; i.e. both measurable and available.  “Available” means collectible
within the current period or within 60 days after the year end.  Expenses are generally recognized
under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related liability is incurred.  The exception
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 (CONTINUED) 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:  (CONTINUED) 

C. Basis of Accounting:  (continued)

to this general rule is that debt service expenditures as well as expenditures related to compensated 
absences, and claims and judgments are recognized when due. 

D. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

A budget is prepared for information and fiscal planning purposes. None of the participating entities are
required to approve the budget. The budget is adopted as a planning document and is not a legal control
on expenses. The budget is prepared on the same basis of accounting as the basic financial statements
are prepared.

E. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

F. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments with
original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. For purposes of the statement of
cash flows, the Commission’s proprietary funds consider their demand deposits and all highly liquid
investments with an original maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

G. Project Expenses

The costs of goods and services which are identifiable for specific projects are directly charged to those
projects at the time costs are incurred. Indirect costs are allocated to projects as described in Note 11.
Personnel costs for Commission employees are direct charges to the appropriate projects.  Expenses of
annual, sick, and other types of paid leave and fringe benefits are allocated to projects as described in
Note 11.

H. Prepaid Items

Certain payments to vendors represent costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepaid items in the financial statements. The cost of prepaid items is recorded as expenses when
consumed rather than when purchased.

I. Net Position Flow Assumption

Net Position is the difference between a) assets and deferred outflows of resources and b) liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources. Net investment in capital assets represents capital assets, less
accumulated depreciation, less any outstanding debt related to the acquisition, construction or
improvement of those assets.  Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources that are
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets or related debt are also
included in this component of net position.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 (CONTINUED) 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:  (CONTINUED) 

J. Net Position Flow Assumption

Sometimes the Commission funds outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g., restricted
bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as
restricted – net position and unrestricted – net position in the financial statements, a flow assumption
must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the
Commission’s policy to consider restricted – net position to have been depleted before unrestricted – net
position is applied.

K. Capital Assets

Capital assets consisting of furniture and equipment are recorded at cost. Property and equipment with
an initial, individual cost of more than $2,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year is
recorded as capital assets unless instructed otherwise by the funding grant document.  Depreciation is
computed on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets ranging from five to
fifteen years. Leased assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term or
their estimated useful lives.

L. Unearned Revenue

The Commission reports unearned revenue on its statement of net position.  Unearned revenues also
arise when resources are received by the Commission before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant
monies are received prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures.  In subsequent periods, when
both revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the Commission has a legal claim to the resources,
the liability for unearned revenue is removed from the statement of net position and revenue is
recognized.

M. Revenue Recognition

Intergovernmental revenues, consisting primarily of federal, state, local and other grants for the
purpose of funding specific expenditures, are recognized when earned. Contributions of the
member governments are based on population and are assessed annually. There is also provision
for special assessments where problems warrant. The Commission recognizes a liability for funds
received in excess of project expenditures.  Operating revenues and expenses are defined as those
items that result from providing services and include all transactions and events which are not
capital and related financing, noncapital financing or investing activities.  Nonoperating revenues
are defined as investment and other revenues.  Nonoperating expenses are defined as noncapital
related financing and other expenses.

N. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position includes a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net assets that applies
to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure)
until then.  The Commission has one type of item that qualifies for reporting in this category..  Itis
comprised of certain items related to pension and OPEB. For more detailed information on these items,
reference the related notes.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 (CONTINUED) 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:  (CONTINUED) 

N. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources:  (continued)

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position includes a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net assets that applies to
a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The
Commission has one type of item that qualifies for reporting in this category.  certain items related to
pension, OPEB, and leases are reported as deferred inflows of resources.  For more detailed information
on these items, reference the related notes.

O. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension asset, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the
Commission’s Retirement Plan and the additions to/deductions from the Commission’s Retirement Plan’s
net fiduciary position have been determined on the same basis as they were reported by the Virginia
Retirement System (VRS). For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments
are reported at fair value.

P. Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

For purposes of measuring the net VRS related OPEB liabilities, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to the OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary
net position of the VRS GLI, HIC, and Standalone OPEB Plans and the additions to/deductions from the
VRS OPEB Plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they were reported by
VRS. In addition, benefit payments are recognized

Q. Leases

The Commission has one lease requiring recognition. A lease is a contract that conveys control of the
right to use another entity’s nonfinancial asset. Lease recognition does not apply to short-term leases,
contracts that transfer ownership, leases of assets that are investments, or certain regulated leases.

Lessee
The Commission recognizes lease liabilities and intangible right-to-use lease assets (lease assets) with an
initial value of $5,000, individually or in the aggregate in the government-wide financial statements. At
the commencement of the lease, the lease liability is measured at the present value of payments
expected to be made during the lease term (less any lease incentives). The lease liability is reduced by
the principal portion of payments made. The lease asset is measured at the initial amount of the lease
liability, plus any payments made to the lessor at or before the commencement of the lease term and
certain direct costs. The lease asset is amortized over the shorter of the lease term or the useful life of
the underlying asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 (CONTINUED) 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:  (CONTINUED) 

Q. Leases:  (continued)

Key Estimates and Judgments
Lease accounting includes estimates and judgments for determining the (1) rate used to discount the
expected lease payments to present value, (2) lease term, and (3) lease payments.

The Commission uses the interest rate stated in lease contracts. When the interest rate is not
provided or the implicit rate cannot be readily determined, the Commission uses its estimated
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate for leases.
The lease term includes the noncancellable period of the lease and certain periods covered by
options to extend to reflect how long the lease is expected to be in effect, with terms and conditions
varying by the type of underlying asset.
Fixed and certain variable payments as well as lease incentives and certain other payments are
included in the measurement of the lease liability (lessee) or lease receivable (lessor).

The Commission monitors changes in circumstances that would require a remeasurement or modification 
of its leases. The Commission will remeasure the lease asset and liability (lessee) or the lease receivable 
and deferred inflows of resources (lessor) if certain changes occur that are expected to significantly 
affect the amount of the lease liability or lease receivable.  

R. Adoption of Accounting Principles

The Commission implemented provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement Nos.
87, Leases and 92, Omnibus 2020 during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. Statement No. 87, Leases
requires recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as
operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment
provisions of the contract. Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020 addresses a variety of topics, including
leases. No restatement of beginning net position was required as a result of this implementation.  Using
the facts and circumstances that existed at the beginning of the year of implementation, the following
balances were recognized as of July 1, 2021 related to the lease(s):

Governmental
Activities

Lessee activity:
Lease assets $ 629,975         

Lease liabilities $ 629,975         
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 (CONTINUED) 

NOTE 2 DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS: 

Deposits with banks are covered by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) and collateralized in 
accordance with the Virginia Security for Public Deposits Act (the “Act”) Section 2.2-4400 et. seq. of the 
Code of Virginia.  Under the Act, banks and savings institutions holding public deposits in excess of the 
amount insured by the FDIC must pledge collateral to the Commonwealth of Virginia Treasury Board. 
Financial Institutions may choose between two collateralization methodologies and depending upon that 
choice, will pledge collateral that ranges in the amounts from 50% to 130% of excess deposits.  Accordingly, 
all deposits are considered fully collateralized. 

Statutes authorize local governments and other public bodies to invest in obligations of the United States or 
agencies thereof, obligations of the Commonwealth of Virginia or political subdivisions thereof, obligations 
of the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development (World Bank), the Asian Development Bank, 
the African Development Bank, “prime quality” commercial paper that has received at least two of the 
following ratings: P-1 by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc.; A-1 by Standard and Poor’s; or F1 by Fitch Ratings, 
Inc. (Section 2.2-4502), banker’s acceptances, repurchase agreements, and the State Treasurer’s Local 
Government Investment Pool (LGIP). 

NOTE 3  DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS: 

Amounts due from other governments at June 30, 2022 are as follows: 

Federal Government:
U.S. Department of Commerce: 15,968   
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services: 9,211  
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development: 7,068  
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 8,572  

Total Federal Government $ 40,819   

State and Local:
Virginia Department of Housing & Community Development 60,394   
Virginia Department of Rail and Public Transportation 193,460 
Virginia Department of Transportation 77,246   
Other 1,571  

Total State and Local $ 332,671 

Total Due from Other Governments $ 373,490 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 (CONTINUED) 

NOTE 4 CAPITAL ASSETS: 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2022 was as follows: 

Balance Balance
July 1, 2020 Additions Deletions June 30, 2021

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Furniture, Equipment and Improvements $ 220,165  $ 9,375  $ - $ 229,540  

Total capital assets being depreciated $ 220,165  $ 9,375  $ - $ 229,540  

Accumulated depreciation:
Furniture, Equipment and Improvements $ 199,080  $ 20,807   $ - $ 219,887  

Total accumulated depreciation $ 199,080  $ 20,807   $ - $ 219,887  

Total capital assets being depreciated, net $ 21,085  $ (11,432)  $ - $ 9,653   

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2022 $20,807. 

*Beginning balances have been adjusted to reflect lease building space due to the implementation of GASB
87.

NOTE 5 COMPENSATED ABSENCES: 

The Commission policy allows employees to accumulate annual leave. Accumulated annual leave up to 30 
days is paid upon termination, while accrued sick leave is paid at a rate of 25%. 

NOTE 6 LONG-TERM OBLIGATION: 

The following is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2022:

Balance Balance Due Within
July 1, 2021* Increases Decreases June 30, 2022 One Year

Other obligations:
Compensated absences $ 51,779          $ 61,152   $ 51,779    $ 61,152           $ 61,152       
Lease liabilities 629,975     - 59,681 570,294      47,588       
Net pension liability 412,254     - 255,256 156,998      - 
Net OPEB liabilities 71,252          - 16,141 55,111           - 

    Total other obligations $ 1,165,260      $ 61,152   $ 382,857  $ 843,555      $ 108,740     
Total long-term liabilities $ 1,165,260      $ 61,152   $ 382,857  $ 843,555      $ 108,740     

*Beginning balances have been adjusted to reflect lease liabilities due to the implementation of GASB 87.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 (CONTINUED) 

NOTE 6 LONG-TERM OBLIGATION:  (CONTINUED) 

As of June 30, 2022, the Commission’s long-term lease consisted of the following: 

Building Lease: 

The Commission entered into a lease agreement for office space, with the lease term to expire on June 30, 
2027 with an option to renew for one additional five year period. The lease also provides for annual base 
rent escalations not to exceed 2% per year. The Commission used the rate of 2% as the discount rate for 
leases. 

Future principal and interest lease payments as of June 30, 2022, under the lease for office space are as 
follows: 

 June 30, Principal Interest

2023 $ 47,588 $ 10,961 
2024 48,743 10,009 
2025 50,913 9,014   
2026 53,150 7,976   
2027 55,457 6,892   

2028-2032 314,443   16,509 

Totals $ 570,294   $ 61,361 

Leased Building

NOTE 7 COMMITMENTS/CONTINGENT LIABILITIES: 

Federal programs in which the Commission participates were audited in accordance with the provisions of 
the Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards.  Pursuant to the provisions of this guidance, all 
major programs and certain other programs were tested for compliance with applicable grant requirements. 

Additionally, the federal government may subject grant programs to additional compliance tests, which 
could result in disallowed expenditures.  In the opinion of management, any future disallowances of grant 
program expenditures would be immaterial. 

NOTE 8 LITIGATION: 

As represented by management, there were no lawsuits pending which would materially affect the 
Commission’s financial position as of the date of these financial statements. 
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 (CONTINUED) 

Note 9 Pension Plan: 

Plan Description  

All full-time, salaried permanent employees of the Commission are automatically covered by a VRS 
Retirement Plan upon employment, through the County of Stafford, Virginia. This is an agent multiple-
employer plan administered by the Virginia Retirement System (the System) along with plans for other 
employer groups in the Commonwealth of Virginia. However, several entities participate in the VRS plan 
through the County of Stafford, Virginia and the participating entities report their proportionate information 
on the basis of a cost-sharing plan. Members earn one month of service credit for each month they are 
employed and for which they and their employer pay contributions to VRS. Members are eligible to purchase 
prior service, based on specific criteria as defined in the Code of Virginia, as amended. Eligible prior service 
that may be purchased includes prior public service, active military service, certain periods of leave, and 
previously refunded service.  

Benefit Structures 

The System administers three different benefit structures for covered employees – Plan 1, Plan 2 and 
Hybrid. Each of these benefit structures has different eligibility criteria, as detailed below. 
 
a. Employees with a membership date before July 1, 2010, vested as of January 1, 2013, and have not 

taken a refund, are covered under Plan 1, a defined benefit plan. Non-hazardous duty employees are 
eligible for an unreduced retirement benefit beginning at age 65 with at least 5 years of service credit or 
age 50 with at least 30 years of service credit. Non-hazardous duty employees may retire with a reduced 
benefit as early as age 55 with at least 5 years of service credit or age 50 with at least 10 years of 
service credit.  

b. Employees with a membership date from July 1, 2010 to December 31, 2013, that have not taken a 
refund or employees with a membership date prior to July 1, 2010 and not vested before January 1, 
2013, are covered under Plan 2, a defined benefit plan. Non-hazardous duty employees are eligible for 
an unreduced benefit beginning at their normal social security retirement age with at least 5 years of 
service credit or when the sum of their age plus service credit equals 90. Non-hazardous duty employees 
may retire with a reduced benefit as early as age 60 with at least 5 years of service credit.  

c. Non-hazardous duty employees with a membership date on or after January 1, 2014 are covered by the 
Hybrid Plan combining the features of a defined benefit plan and a defined contribution plan. Plan 1 and 
Plan 2 members also had the option of opting into this plan during the election window held January 1 – 
April 30, 2014 with an effective date of July 1, 2014. Employees covered by this plan are eligible for an 
unreduced benefit beginning at their normal social security retirement age with at least 5 years of 
service credit, or when the sum of their age plus service credit equals 90. Employees may retire with a 
reduced benefit as early as age 60 with at least 5 years of service credit. For the defined contribution 
component, members are eligible to receive distributions upon leaving employment, subject to 
restrictions.  
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 (CONTINUED) 

Note 9 Pension Plan: (Continued) 

Average Final Compensation and Service Retirement Multiplier 

The VRS defined benefit is a lifetime monthly benefit based on a retirement multiplier as a percentage of 
the employee’s average final compensation multiplied by the employee’s total service credit. Under Plan 1, 
average final compensation is the average of the employee’s 36 consecutive months of highest 
compensation and the multiplier is 1.70% for non-hazardous duty employees, 1.85% for sheriffs and regional 
jail superintendents. Under Plan 2, average final compensation is the average of the employee’s 60 
consecutive months of highest compensation and the retirement multiplier is 1.65% for non-hazardous duty 
employees, 1.85% for sheriffs and regional jail superintendents. Under the Hybrid Plan, average final 
compensation is the average of the employee’s 60 consecutive months of highest compensation and the 
multiplier is 1.00%. For members who opted into the Hybrid Retirement Plan from Plan 1 or Plan 2, the 
applicable multipliers for those plans will be used to calculate the retirement benefit for service credited in 
those plans. 

 
Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) in Retirement and Death and Disability Benefits 

Retirees with an unreduced benefit or with a reduced benefit with at least 20 years of service credit are 
eligible for an annual COLA beginning July 1 after one full calendar year from the retirement date. Retirees 
with a reduced benefit and who have less than 20 years of service credit are eligible for an annual COLA 
beginning on July 1 after one calendar year following the unreduced retirement eligibility date. Under Plan 
1, the COLA cannot exceed 5.00%. Under Plan 2 and the Hybrid Plan, the COLA cannot exceed 3.00%. The 
VRS also provides death and disability benefits. Title 51.1 of the Code of Virginia, as amended, assigns the 
authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the General Assembly of Virginia. 
 
Contributions  

The contribution requirement for active employees is governed by §51.1-145 of the Code of Virginia, as 
amended, but may be impacted as a result of funding options provided to political subdivisions by the 
Virginia General Assembly. Employees are required to contribute 5.00% of their compensation toward their 
retirement.  

The Commission’s contractually required employer contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2022, was 
10.99% of covered employee compensation. This rate was based on an actuarially determined rate from an 
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019. 

This rate, when combined with employee contributions, was expected to finance the costs of benefits 
earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. 
Contributions to the pension plan from the Commission were $79,999 for the year ended June 30, 2022.  
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 (CONTINUED) 

Note 9 Pension Plan: (Continued) 

Net Pension Liability 
 
At June 30, 2022, the Commission reported a liability of $156,998 for its proportionate share of the net 
pension liability.  The Commission’s net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2021. The total 
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation 
performed as of June 30, 2020 and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2021.  The 
Commission’s proportionate share of the same was calculated using contributions as of June 30, 2022, and 
as a basis for allocation. At June 30, 2022 the Commission’s proportion was 1.09%. 

Actuarial Assumptions – General Employees  
 
The total pension liability for General Employees in the Commission’s Retirement Plan was based on an 
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020, using the Entry Age Normal actuarial cost method and the following 
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement and rolled forward to the measurement 
date of June 30, 2021. 
 

Inflation 2.50%

Salary increases, including inflation 3.50% – 4.75%

Investment rate of return 6.75%, net of pension plan investment
expenses, including inflation  

Mortality rates:  
 

All Others (Non-10 Largest) – Non-Hazardous Duty: 15% of deaths are assumed to be service related  
 

Pre-Retirement:  
Pub-2010 Amount Weighted Safety Employee Rates projected generationally; 95% of rates for males; 
105% of rates for females set forward 2 years 

 
Post-Retirement:  

Pub-2010 Amount Weighted Safety Healthy Retiree Rates projected generationally; 110% of rates for 
males; 105% of rates for females set forward 3 years 
 

Post-Disablement:  
Pub-2010 Amount Weighted General Disabled Rates projected generationally; 95% of rates for males 
set back 3 years; 90% of rates for females set back 3 years 

 
Beneficiaries and Survivors: 

Pub-2010 Amount Weighted Safety Contingent Annuitant Rates projected generationally; 110% of rates 
for males and females set forward 2 years 

 
Mortality Improvements: 

Rates projected generationally with Modified MP-2020 Improvement Scale that is 75% of the MP-2020 
rates 
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 (CONTINUED) 

Note 9 Pension Plan: (Continued) 
 

Actuarial Assumptions – General Employees: (Continued)  
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period from July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2020, except the change in the discount 
rate, which was based on VRS Board action effective as of July 1, 2019. Changes to the actuarial 
assumptions as a result of the experience study and VRS Board action are as follows: 

 
All Others (Non-10 Largest) – Non-Hazardous Duty:   
 
Mortality Rates (pre-retirement, post-
retirement healthy, and disabled)

Update to Pub-2010 public sector mortality tables.
For future mortality improvements, replace load
with a modified Mortality Improvement Scale MP-
2020

Retirement Rates Adjusted rates to better fit experience for Plan 1;
set separate rates based on experience for Plan
2/Hybrid; changed final retirement age

Withdrawal Rates Adjusted rates to better fit experience at each age
and service decrement through 9 years of service

Disability Rates No change
Salary Scale No change
Line of Duty Disability No change
Discount Rate No change  

 
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return  

The long-term expected rate of return on pension System investments was determined using a log-normal 
distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected 
returns, net of pension System investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected 
future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The 
target asset allocation and best estimate of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are 
summarized in the following table: 
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 (CONTINUED) 

Note 9 Pension Plan: (Continued) 

Weighted
Long-Term Arithmetic Average

Target Long-term Long-term
Asset Expected Expected

Asset Class (Strategy) Allocation Rate of Return Rate of Return*

Public Equity 34.00% 5.00% 1.70%
Fixed Income 15.00% 0.57% 0.09%
Credit Strategies 14.00% 4.49% 0.63%
Real Assets 14.00% 4.76% 0.67%
Private Equity 14.00% 9.94% 1.39%
MAPS - Multi-Asset Public Strategies 6.00% 3.29% 0.20%
PIP - Private Investment Partnership 3.00% 6.84% 0.21%

Total 100.00% 4.89%

Inflation 2.50%
Expected arithmetic nominal return* 7.39%

 

* The above allocation provides a one-year expected return of 7.39%. However, one-year returns do not take 
into account the volatility present in each of the asset classes. In setting the long-term expected return for 
the System, stochastic projections are employed to model future returns under various economic conditions. 
These results provide a range of returns over various time periods that ultimately provide a median return of 
6.94%, including expected inflation of 2.50%.  
 
*On October 10, 2019, the VRS Board elected a long-term rate of return of 6.75% which was roughly at the 
40th percentile of expected long-term results of the VRS fund asset allocation at that time, providing a 
median return of 7.11%, including expected inflation of 2.50%.  
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 (CONTINUED) 

Note 9 Pension Plan: (Continued) 

Discount Rate  

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash flows used 
to determine the discount rate assumed that System member contributions will be made per the VRS 
Statutes and the employer contributions will be made in accordance with the VRS funding policy at rates 
equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates adopted by the VRS Board of 
Trustees and the member rate. Consistent with the phased-in funding provided by the General Assembly for 
state and teacher employer contributions; the Commission was also provided with an opportunity to use an 
alternative employer contribution rate. For the year ended June 30, 2021, the alternate rate was the 
employer contribution rate used in FY 2012 or 100% of the actuarially determined employer contribution 
rate from the June 30, 2017 actuarial valuations, whichever was greater. From July 1, 2021 on, participating 
employers are assumed to continue to contribute 100% of the actuarially determined contribution rates. 
Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make 
all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore. the long-term 
expected rate of return was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total 
pension liability.  
 
Sensitivity of the Commission’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the 
Discount Rate 
 
The following presents the Commission’s proportionate share of the net pension liability using the discount 
rate of 6.75%, as well as what the Commission’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if 
it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (5.75%) or one percentage point 
higher (7.75%) than the current rate: 

1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
(5.75%) (6.75%) (7.75%)

Commission's proportionate share of the
County's Retirement Plan
Net Pension Liability (Asset) $ 572,515      $ 156,998          $ 182,511      

Rate

 
 

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
Pensions 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Commission recognized pension expense of $46,425. Since there was 
a change in proportionate share between measurement dates, a portion of the pension expense was related 
to deferred amounts from changes in proportion and from differences between employer contributions and 
the proportionate share of employer contributions. 
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 (CONTINUED) 

Note 9 Pension Plan: (Continued) 

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
Pensions: (Continued)  

At June 30, 2022, the Commission reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 53,154      $

Change in assumptions 112,737    

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on
pension plan investments 296,307  

Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 79,999      

Total $ 245,890    $ 296,307  
 

 
$79,999 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the Commission’s 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the Net Pension 
Liability in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense in future 
reporting periods as follows: 

Primary
Year Ended June 30 Government

2023 $ 2,889                 
2024 19,521               
2025 23,573               
2026 84,433               
2027 -                    

Thereafter -                    
 

 
Pension Plan Data 

Information about the VRS Political Subdivision Retirement Plan is also available in the separately issued VRS 
2021 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (Annual Report). A copy of the 2021 VRS Annual Report may be 
downloaded from the VRS website at https://www.varetire.org/pdf/publications/2021-annual-report-pdf, 
or by writing to the System’s Chief Financial Officer at P.O. Box 2500, Richmond, VA 23218-2500. 
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 (Continued) 

NOTE 10 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE (GLI) PLAN (OPEB PLAN): 

Plan Description  

The Group Life Insurance (GLI) Plan was established pursuant to §51.1-500 et seq. of the Code of Virginia, as 
amended, and which provides the authority under which benefit terms are established or may be amended. 
All full-time, salaried permanent employees of the state agencies, teachers, and employees of participating 
political subdivisions are automatically covered by the VRS GLI Plan upon employment. This is a cost-sharing 
multiple-employer plan administered by the Virginia Retirement System (the System), along with pensions and 
other OPEB plans, for public employer groups in the Commonwealth of Virginia.  

In addition to the Basic GLI benefit, members are also eligible to elect additional coverage for themselves as 
well as a spouse or dependent children through the Optional GLI Plan. For members who elect the optional 
group life insurance coverage, the insurer bills employers directly for the premiums. Employers deduct these 
premiums from members’ paychecks and pay the premiums to the insurer. Since this is a separate and fully 
insured plan, it is not included as part of the GLI Plan OPEB. 
 
The specific information for GLI OPEB, including eligibility, coverage and benefits is described below: 
 
Eligible Employees 
 
The GLI Plan was established July 1, 1960, for state employees, teachers, and employees of political 
subdivisions that elect the plan. Basic GLI coverage is automatic upon employment. Coverage ends for 
employees who leave their position before retirement eligibility or who take a refund of their accumulated 
retirement member contributions and accrued interest. 
 
Benefit Amounts 
 
The GLI Plan is a defined benefit plan with several components. The natural death benefit is equal to the 
employee’s covered compensation rounded to the next highest thousand and then doubled. The accidental 
death benefit is double the natural death benefit. In addition to basic natural and accidental death benefits, 
the plan provides additional benefits provided under specific circumstances that include the following: 
accidental dismemberment benefit, seatbelt benefit, repatriation benefit, felonious assault benefit, and 
accelerated death benefit option. The benefit amounts are subject to a reduction factor. The benefit amount 
reduces by 25% on January 1 following one calendar year of separation. The benefit amount reduces by an 
additional 25% on each subsequent January 1 until it reaches 25% of its original value. For covered members 
with at least 30 years of service credit, the minimum benefit payable was set at $8,000 by statute in 2015. 
This will be increased annually based on the VRS Plan 2 cost-of-living adjustment calculation.  The minimum 
benefit adjusted for the COLA was $8,722 as of June 30, 2022. 
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 (Continued) 

NOTE 10 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE (GLI) PLAN (OPEB PLAN):  (CONTINUED) 

Contributions  

The contribution requirements for the GLI Plan are governed by §51.1-506 and §51.1-508 of the Code of 
Virginia, as amended, but may be impacted as a result of funding provided to state agencies and school 
divisions by the Virginia General Assembly. The total rate for the GLI Plan was 1.34% of covered employee 
compensation. This was allocated into an employee and an employer component using a 60/40 split. The 
employee component was 0.80% (1.34% x 60%) and the employer component was 0.54% (1.34% x 40%). 
Employers may elect to pay all or part of the employee contribution; however, the employer must pay all of 
the employer contribution. Each employer’s contractually required employer contribution rate for the year 
ended June 30, 2022, was 0.54% of covered employee compensation. This rate was based on an actuarially 
determined rate from an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019. The actuarially determined rate, when 
combined with employee contributions, was expected to finance the costs of benefits payable during the year, 
with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.  Contributions to the Group Life Insurance 
Plan from the entity were $6,160for the year ended June 30, 2022. 

GLI OPEB Liabilities, GLI OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to the GLI Plan OPEB 

At June 30, 2022, the entity reported a liability of $40,169 its proportionate share of the Net GLI OPEB 
Liability. The Net GLI OPEB Liability was measured as of June 30, 2021 and the total GLI OPEB liability used 
to calculate the Net GLI OPEB Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation performed as of June 30, 
2020, and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2021. The covered employer’s proportion of 
the Net GLI OPEB Liability was based on the covered employer’s actuarially determined employer 
contributions to the GLI Plan for the year ended June 30, 2021, relative to the total of the actuarially 
determined employer contributions for all participating employers. At June 30, 2021, the participating 
employer’s proportion was 1.09%. 

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the participating employer recognized GLI OPEB expense of $3,070. Since 
there was a change in proportionate share between measurement dates, a portion of the GLI OPEB expense 
was related to deferred amounts from changes in proportion. 
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 (Continued) 

NOTE 10 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE (GLI) PLAN (OPEB PLAN):  (CONTINUED) 

GLI OPEB Liabilities, GLI OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to the GLI Plan OPEB:  (Continued) 

At June 30, 2022, the employer reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to the GLI OPEB from the following sources: 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 4,584              $ 306               

Net difference between projected and actual 
earnings on GLI OPEB plan investments -                 9,594            

Change in assumptions 2,216              5,500            

Changes in proportionate share 5,334              -               

Employer contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 6,160              -               

Total $ 18,294             $ 15,400          

 
 

$6,160 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to the GLI OPEB resulting from the employer’s 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the Net GLI OPEB 
Liability in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources related to the GLI OPEB will be recognized in the GLI OPEB expense in future 
reporting periods as follows: 
 

Year Ended June 30

2023 $ (269)                  
2024 (414)                  
2025 (1,994)                
2026 (33)                    
2027 -                    

Thereafter -                     
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 (Continued) 

NOTE 10 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE (GLI) PLAN (OPEB PLAN):  (CONTINUED) 

Actuarial Assumptions 
 
The total GLI OPEB liability was based on an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020, using the Entry Age 
Normal actuarial cost method and the following assumptions, applied to all periods included in the 
measurement and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2021. The assumptions include several 
employer groups. Salary increases and mortality rates included herein are for relevant employer groups. 
Information for other groups can be referenced in the VRS Annual Report. 

Inflation 2.50%

Salary increases, including inflation:
Locality - General employees 3.50%-5.35%

Investment rate of return 6.75%, net of investment expenses,
including inflation

 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period from July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2020, except the change in the discount 
rate, which was based on VRS Board action effective as of July 1, 2019. Changes to the actuarial assumptions 
as a result of the experience study and VRS Board action are as follows: 

Mortality Rates (pre-retirement, 
post-retirement healthy, and 
disabled)

Update to Pub-2010 public sector mortality tables. 
For future mortality improvements, replace load 
with a modified Mortality Improvement Scale MP-
2020

Retirement Rates Adjusted rates to better fit experience for Plan 1; 
set separate rates based on experience for Plan 
2/Hybrid; changed final retirement age from 75 to 
80 for all

Withdrawal Rates Adjusted rates to better fit experience at each age 
and service decrement through 9 years of service

Disability Rates No change

Salary Scale No change

Line of Duty Disability No change
Discount Rate No change  
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 (Continued) 

NOTE 10 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE (GLI) PLAN (OPEB PLAN):  (CONTINUED) 

Actuarial Assumptions:  (Continued) 
 

 
Mortality Rates – Non-Largest Ten Locality Employers – General Employees 
 
 Pre-Retirement: 

Pub-2010 Amount Weighted Safety Employee Rates projected generationally; males set forward 2 
years; 105% of rates for females set forward 3 years 

 
 Post-Retirement: 

Pub-2010 Amount Weighted Safety Healthy Retiree Rates projected generationally; 95% of rates for 
males set forward 2 years; 95% of rates for females set forward 1 year 

 
 Post-Disablement: 

Pub-2010 Amount Weighted General Disabled Rates projected generationally; 110% of rates for males 
set forward 3 years; 110% of rates for females set forward 2 years 

 
 Beneficiaries and Survivors: 

Pub-2010 Amount Weighted Safety Contingent Annuitant Rates projected generationally 
 
 Mortality Improvement Scale: 

Rates projected generationally with Modified MP-2020 Improvement Scale that is 75% of the MP-2020 
rates 
 

NET GLI OPEB Liability 
 
The net OPEB liability (NOL) for the GLI Plan represents the plan’s total OPEB liability determined in 
accordance with GASB Statement No. 74, less the associated fiduciary net position. As of the measurement 
date of June 30, 2021, NOL amounts for the GLI Plan are as follows (amounts expressed in thousands): 

 
 GLI OPEB

Plan

Total GLI OPEB Liability $ 3,577,346          
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 2,413,074          
GLI Net OPEB Liability (Asset) $ 1,164,272          

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage 
of the Total GLI OPEB Liability 67.45%  

 
The total GLI OPEB liability is calculated by the System’s actuary, and each plan’s fiduciary net position is 
reported in the System’s financial statements. The net GLI OPEB liability is disclosed in accordance with the 
requirements of GASB Statement No. 74 in the System’s notes to the financial statements and required 
supplementary information. 
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 (Continued) 

NOTE 10 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE (GLI) PLAN (OPEB PLAN):  (CONTINUED) 

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return 

The long-term expected rate of return on the System’s investments was determined using a log-normal 
distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, 
net of System’s investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are 
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of 
return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target asset allocation 
and best estimate of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following 
table: 

 
Weighted

Long-Term Arithmetic Average
Target Long-term Long-term
Asset Expected Expected

Asset Class (Strategy) Allocation Rate of Return Rate of Return*

Public Equity 34.00% 5.00% 1.70%
Fixed Income 15.00% 0.57% 0.09%
Credit Strategies 14.00% 4.49% 0.63%
Real Assets 14.00% 4.76% 0.67%
Private Equity 14.00% 9.94% 1.39%
MAPS - Multi-Asset Public Strategies 6.00% 3.29% 0.20%
PIP - Private Investment Partnership 3.00% 6.84% 0.21%

Total 100.00% 4.89%

Inflation 2.50%
Expected arithmetic nominal return* 7.39%

 
*The above allocation provides a one-year return of 7.39%. However, one-year returns do not take into account 
the volatility present in each of the asset classes. In setting the long-term expected return for the System, 
stochastic projections are employed to model future returns under various economic conditions. These results 
provide a range of returns over various time periods that ultimately provide a median return of 6.94%, 
including expected inflation of 2.50%.  
 
* On October 10, 2019, the VRS Board elected a long-term rate of return of 6.75%, which was roughly at the 
40th percentile of expected long-term results of the VRS fund asset allocation at that time, providing a median 
return of 7.11%, including expected inflation of 2.50%.  
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 (Continued) 

NOTE 10 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE (GLI) PLAN (OPEB PLAN):  (CONTINUED) 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total GLI OPEB liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash flows used 
to determine the discount rate assumed that employer contributions will be made in accordance with the VRS 
funding policy and at rates equal to the actuarially determined contribution rates adopted by the VRS Board 
of Trustees. Through the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the rate contributed by the entity for the GLI OPEB 
will be subject to the portion of the VRS Board-certified rates that are funded by the Virginia General Assembly 
which was 100% of the actuarially determined contribution rate. From July 1, 2021, on, employers are assumed 
to continue to contribute 100% of the actuarially determined contribution rates. Based on those assumptions, 
the GLI OPEB’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit 
payments of eligible employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return was applied to all periods 
of projected benefit payments to determine the total GLI OPEB liability. 
 
Sensitivity of the Employer’s Proportionate Share of the Net GLI OPEB Liability to Changes in the 
Discount Rate 
 
The following presents the employer’s proportionate share of the net GLI OPEB liability using the discount 
rate of 6.75%, as well as what the employer’s proportionate share of the net GLI OPEB liability would be if it 
were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (5.75%) or one percentage point 
higher (7.75%) than the current rate: 
 

1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
(5.75%) (6.75%) (7.75%)

Commission's proportionate 
share of the GLI Plan
Net OPEB Liability 58,739                40,197                25,236                

Rate

 
 

GLI Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
 
Detailed information about the GLI Plan’s Fiduciary Net Position is available in the separately issued VRS 2021 
Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (Annual Report). A copy of the 2021 VRS Annual Report may be 
downloaded from the VRS website at http://www.varetire.org/pdf/publications/2021-annual-report.pdf, or 
by writing to the System’s Chief Financial Officer at P.O. Box 2500, Richmond, VA, 23218-2500. 
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 (CONTINUED) 

NOTE 11 HEALTH INSURANCE CREDIT (HIC) PLAN (OPEB PLAN): 

Plan Description  

The Political Subdivision Health Insurance Credit (HIC) Plan was established pursuant to §51.1-1400 et seq. of 
the Code of Virginia, as amended, and which provides the authority under which benefit terms are established 
or may be amended. All full-time, salaried permanent employees of participating political subdivisions are 
automatically covered by the VRS Political Subdivision HIC Plan upon employment. This is an agent multiple-
employer plan administered by the Virginia Retirement System (the System), along with pension and other 
OPEB plans, for public employer groups in the Commonwealth of Virginia. Members earn one month of service 
credit toward the benefit for each month they are employed and for which their employer pays contributions 
to VRS. The HIC is a tax-free reimbursement in an amount set by the General Assembly for each year of service 
credit against qualified health insurance premiums retirees pay for single coverage, excluding any portion 
covering the spouse or dependents. The credit cannot exceed the amount of the premiums and ends upon the 
retiree’s death. 
 
The specific information about the Political Subdivision HIC Plan OPEB, including eligibility, coverage and 
benefits is described below: 
 
Eligible Employees 
  
The Political Subdivision Retiree HIC Plan was established July 1, 1993 for retired political subdivision 
employees of employers who elect the benefit and retire with at least 15 years of service credit. Eligible 
employees include full-time permanent salaried employees of the participating political subdivision who are 
covered under the VRS pension plan. These employees are enrolled automatically upon employment.  
 
Benefit Amounts 
 
The Political Subdivision Retiree HIC Plan is a defined benefit plan that provides a credit toward the cost of 
health insurance coverage for retired political subdivision employees of participating employers. For 
employees who retire, the monthly benefit is $1.50 per year of service per month with a maximum benefit of 
$45.00 per month. For employees who retire on disability or go on long-term disability under the Virginia Local 
Disability Program (VLDP), the monthly benefit is $45.00 per month. 
 
HIC Plan Notes 
 
The monthly HIC benefit cannot exceed the individual premium amount. There is no HIC for premiums paid 
and qualified under LODA; however, the employee may receive the credit for premiums paid for other 
qualified health plans. Employees who retire after being on long-term disability under VLDP must have at least 
15 years of service credit to qualify for the HIC as a retiree. 
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 (CONTINUED) 

NOTE 11 HEALTH INSURANCE CREDIT (HIC) PLAN (OPEB PLAN):  (CONTINUED) 

Contributions  

The contribution requirements for active employees is governed by §51.1-1402(E) of the Code of Virginia, as 
amended, but may be impacted as a result of funding options provided to political subdivisions by the Virginia 
General Assembly. The Commission’s contractually required employer contribution rate for the year ended 
June 30, 2022 was 11% of covered employee compensation. This rate was based on an actuarially determined 
rate from an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020. The actuarially determined rate was expected to finance 
the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded 
accrued liability. Contributions from the Commission to the HIC Plan was $489 for the year ended June 30, 
2022. 

During the 2020 session, House Bill 1513 was enacted. This bill required the addition of Health Insurance Credit 
benefits for non-teacher employees effective July 1, 2021. While benefit payments became effective July 1, 
2021, employers were required to pre-fund the benefits beginning July 1, 2020. The bill impacted 95 employers 
and resulted in approximately $2.5 million of additional employer contributions in FY 2021. 
 

Net HIC OPEB Liability  

The Commission’s net HIC OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2021. The total HIC OPEB liability was 
determined by an actuarial valuation performed as of June 30, 2020, using updated actuarial assumptions, 
applied to all periods included in the measurement and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 
2021. 

Actuarial Assumptions 
 
The total HIC OPEB liability was based on an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020, using the Entry Age 
Normal actuarial cost method and the following assumptions, applied to all periods included in the 
measurement and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2021. 

Inflation 2.50%

Salary increases, including inflation:
Locality - General employees 3.50%-5.35%
Locality - Hazardous Duty employees 3.50%-4.75%

Investment rate of return 6.75%, net of investment expenses,
including inflation  

 

41

DRAFTired the addired t
le benefit paymee benefit 

ning July 1, 2020. Thning July 1, 2020 e 
mployer contributions imployer contributions

measured as of June 30ured as of June 3
rmed as of June 30, 2s of June 30, 2

asurement and rolled fasurement and ro

was based on an actuwas based on an ac
ethod and the followethod and the follow

ward to the measward to the meDDDD



GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 (CONTINUED) 

NOTE 11 HEALTH INSURANCE CREDIT (HIC) PLAN (OPEB PLAN):  (CONTINUED) 

Mortality Rates – Non-Largest Ten Locality Employers – General Employees 

Pre-Retirement: 
Pub-2010 Amount Weighted Safety Employee Rates projected generationally; 95% of rates for 
males; 105% of rates for females set forward 2 years 

 Post-Retirement: 
Pub-2010 Amount Weighted Safety Healthy Retiree Rates projected generationally; 110% of rates for 
males; 105% of rates for females set forward 3 years 

 Post-Disablement: 
Pub-2010 Amount Weighted General Disabled Rates projected generationally; 95% of rates for males set 
back 3 years; 90% of rates for females set back 3 years 

 Beneficiaries and Survivors: 
Pub-2010 Amount Weighted Safety Contingent Annuitant Rates projected generationally; 110% of rates 
for males and females set forward 2 years 

 Mortality Improvement Scale: 
Rates projected generationally with Modified MP-2020 Improvement Scale that is 75% of the MP-2020 
rates 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period from July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2020, except the change in the discount 
rate, which was based on VRS Board action effective as of July 1, 2019. Changes to the actuarial assumptions 
as a result of the experience study and VRS Board action are as follows: 

Mortality Rates (pre-retirement, post-
retirement healthy, and disabled)

Update to Pub-2010 public sector mortality tables. For
future mortality improvements, replace load with a
modified Mortality Improvement Scale MP-2020

Retirement Rates Adjusted rates to better fit experience for Plan 1; set
separate rates based on experience for Plan 2/Hybrid;
changed final retirement age from 75 to 80 for all

Withdrawal Rates Adjusted rates to better fit experience at each age and
service decrement through 9 years of service

Disability Rates No change
Salary Scale No change
Line of Duty Disability No change
Discount Rate No change  
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 (CONTINUED) 

NOTE 11 HEALTH INSURANCE CREDIT (HIC) PLAN (OPEB PLAN):  (CONTINUED) 

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return 

The long-term expected rate of return on the System’s investments was determined using a log-normal 
distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, 
net of System’s investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are 
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of 
return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target asset allocation 
and best estimate of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following 
table: 
 

Weighted
Long-term Arithmetic Average

Target Long-term Long-term
Asset Expected Expected

Asset Class (Strategy) Allocation Rate of Return Rate of Return*

Public Equity 34.00% 5.00% 1.70%
Fixed Income 15.00% 0.57% 0.09%
Credit Strategies 14.00% 4.49% 0.63%
Real Assets 14.00% 4.76% 0.67%
Private Equity 14.00% 9.94% 1.39%
MAPS - Multi-Asset Public Strategies 6.00% 3.29% 0.20%
PIP - Private Investement Partnership 3.00% 6.84% 0.21%

Total 100.00% 4.89%

Inflation 2.50%
Expected arithmetic nominal return* 7.39%

 
 
*The above allocation provides a one-year return of 7.39%. However, one-year returns do not take into account 
the volatility present in each of the asset classes. In setting the long-term expected return for the System, 
stochastic projections are employed to model future returns under various economic conditions. These results 
provide a range of returns over various time periods that ultimately provide a median return of 6.94%, 
including expected inflation of 2.50%.  
 
* On October 10, 2019, the VRS Board elected a long-term rate of return of 6.75% which was roughly at the 
40th percentile of expected long-term results of the VRS fund asset allocation at that time, providing a median 
return of 7.11%, including expected inflation of 2.50%.  
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 (CONTINUED) 

NOTE 11 HEALTH INSURANCE CREDIT (HIC) PLAN (OPEB PLAN):  (CONTINUED) 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total HIC OPEB liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash flows used 
to determine the discount rate assumed that employer contributions will be made in accordance with the VRS 
funding policy at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates adopted by 
the VRS Board of Trustees and the member rate. Through the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the rate 
contributed by the entity for the HIC OPEB was 100% of the actuarially determined contribution rate. From 
July 1, 2021 on, employers are assumed to continue to contribute 100% of the actuarially determined 
contribution rates. Based on those assumptions, the HIC OPEB’s fiduciary net position was projected to be 
available to make all projected future benefit payments of eligible employees. Therefore, the long-term 
expected rate of return was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total HIC 
OPEB liability. 
 
Changes in Net HIC OPEB Liability 
 

Total Plan Net
HIC OPEB Fiduciary HIC OPEB
Liability Net Position Liability (Asset)

(a) (b) (a) - (b)

Balances at June 30, 2020 $ 77,490,000 $ 24,468,000 $ 53,022,000

Changes for the year:
Service cost $ 1,532,000    $ -              $ 1,532,000    
Interest 5,113,000    -              5,113,000    
Benefit changes -             -              -              
Differences between expected 
and actual experience (669,000)      -              (669,000)      

Assumption changes 1,656,000    -              1,656,000    
Contributions - employer -             5,240,000     (5,240,000)   
Net investment income -             6,711,000     (6,711,000)   
Benefit payments (3,098,000)   (3,098,000)    -              
Administrative expenses -             (86,000)        86,000         
Other changes -             -              -              
Net changes $ 4,534,000 $ 8,767,000.00 $ (4,233,000)   

Balances at June 30, 2021 $ 82,024,000 $ 33,235,000 $ 48,789,000

Increase (Decrease)
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 (CONTINUED) 

NOTE 11 HEALTH INSURANCE CREDIT (HIC) PLAN (OPEB PLAN):  (CONTINUED) 

Sensitivity of the Commission’s HIC Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The following presents the Commission’s HIC Plan net HIC OPEB liability using the discount rate of 6.75%, as 
well as what the Commission’s net HIC OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that 
is one percentage point lower (5.75%) or one percentage point higher (7.75%) than the current rate: 

1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
(5.75%) (6.75%) (7.75%)

Commission's
Net HIC OPEB Liability 2,083                 755                    (367)                   

Rate

 
 
HIC Plan OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to HIC Plan OPEB 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Commission recognized HIC Plan OPEB expense of $186 At June 30, 
2022, the Commission reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
the Commission’s HIC Plan from the following sources: 
 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 182                   $ -                  

Net difference between projected and actual 
earnings on HIC OPEB plan investments -                    1,129              

Change in assumptions 357                   101                 

Changes in proportionate share -                    -                  

Employer contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 489                   -                  

Total $ 1,028                 $ 1,230              
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 (CONTINUED) 

NOTE 11 HEALTH INSURANCE CREDIT (HIC) PLAN (OPEB PLAN):  (CONTINUED) 

HIC Plan OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to HIC Plan OPEB:  (Continued) 
 
$489 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to the HIC OPEB resulting from the Commission’s 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the Net HIC OPEB 
Liability in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources related to the HIC OPEB will be recognized in the HIC OPEB expense in 
future reporting periods as follows: 
 

Year Ended June 30

2023 $ (191)      
2024 (188)      
2025 (153)      
2026 (257)      
2027 53         

Thereafter 34          
HIC Plan Data 
 
Information about the VRS Political Subdivision HIC Plan is available in the separately issued VRS 2021 Annual 
Comprehensive Financial Report (Annual Report). A copy of the 2021 VRS Annual Report may be downloaded 
from the VRS website at http://www.varetire.org/pdf/publications/2021-annual-report.pdf, or by writing to 
the System’s Chief Financial Officer at P.O. Box 2500, Richmond, VA, 23218-2500. 
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 (CONTINUED) 

NOTE 12- RETIRED EMPLOYEES HEALHT INSURANCE PLAN – (OPEB PLAN):  

Plan Description 

Name of Plan:   Stafford County Retired Employees Heath Insurance Plan (SCREHIP) 
Identification of Plan:  Single-Employer Defined Benefit Plan 
Administering Entity:  Stafford County 

Stafford County provides post employment healthcare insurance benefits (OPEB) for retired employees 
through a single-employer defined benefit plan.  The employees receiving benefits under this plan include 
employees of Stafford County, employees of the Rappahannock Regional Solid Waste Management Board (R-
Board) and employees of the George Washington Regional Commission (GWRC). The benefits, 
employee/retiree contributions and employer contributions are determined by the County through its 
personnel compensation plan.  They may be amended by action of the governing body – the Board of 
Supervisors.  The plan does not issue a separate financial report.  The plan is managed by an OPEB Committee 
consisting of three members – the Treasurer, the Chief Financial Officer and a member of the Board of 
Supervisors of Stafford County, Virginia. 

Benefits Provided 

All retiree healthcare benefits are provided through Stafford County’s self-insured health plan.  The benefit 
levels are the same as those afforded to active employees.  Benefits include general inpatient and outpatient 
medical services, mental and nervous care, vision care, dental care and prescriptions.  To be eligible for 
benefits, an employee must qualify for retirement under the VRS. 

Plan Membership 

At July 1, 2021 (valuation date), the following employees were covered by the benefit terms: 

Entire
Plan

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 216       
Active employees 842       

Total 1,058     
 

Contributions 
 
The employee and retiree healthcare contribution rates are set as policy by the Board of Supervisors of 
Stafford County, Virginia. Beginning July 1, 2009, the Stafford County, Virginia offered a choice of health care 
options for its active and retired employees. The options differ based on level of coverage. All plan 
participants, active and retirees, are required to pay a portion of the monthly premium. The monthly premium 
is based on the health care plan chosen plus applicable dependent coverage. 
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 (CONTINUED) 

NOTE 12- RETIRED EMPLOYEES HEALTH INSURANCE PLAN – (OPEB PLAN):  (CONTINUED)  

Contributions (continued) 

VRS eligible retirees receive a monthly (HIC) of $1.50 for each year of service up to a maximum of $45.00 per 
month. The HIC is applied to and reduces the retiree contribution. For retirees with fifteen (15) years or more 
of service to the County, the HIC covers the retiree’s share of the premium. The County contributes the 
remainder of the retiree only premium. Retirees with less than 15 years of service pay the full premium less 
any VRS HIC. The retiree is responsible for dependent coverage at stated plan rates. Post Medicare eligible 
retirees with 15 years of service to the County must be enrolled in Medicare Parts A and B to be eligible to 
participate in the County’s health insurance plan. Payment for Medicare Parts A and B is the responsibility of 
the retiree. 

Total OPEB Liability 

The total OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2022.  

Actuarial Assumptions 

An actuarial valuation was performed as of January 1, 2021 and updated procedures were used to roll forward 
the total OPEB liability to the OPEB plan’s year end of June 30, 2022. 

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as 
understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of 
each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members 
to that point.  The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce 
the effects of short-term volatility in actuarially accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent 
with the long-term perspective of the calculations. 
 
An experienced study has not been completed for the OPEB plan.  The demographic assumptions used on this 
valuation are based on those used by the VRS.  The total OPEB liability as of June 30, 2022 was determined 
by an actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2021 rolled forward to June 30, 2022 using the following actuarial 
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified: 
 

Inflation 2.50%
Salary Increases 5.35% initially, decreasing to 3.5% over 

20 year period including inflation.

Discount Rate 2.45%
Investment Rate of Return 6.75% including inflation  

 
Mortality rates for general employees and healthy retirees were based on a Pub-2010 Healthy Table, sex 
distinct fully generational using Scale MP-2018, Mortality rates for disabled retirees were based on Pub-2010 
Disabled Table, sex distinct fully generational using Scale MP-2018.  
 
The municipal bond rated used as of June 30, 2022 is 1.92%.  This rate is based on the Bond Buyer General 
Obligation 20-year Bond Municipal Bond Index. 
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 (CONTINUED) 

NOTE 12- RETIRED EMPLOYEES HEALTH INSURANCE PLAN – (OPEB PLAN):  (CONTINUED)  

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 1.92%, the discount rate on the measurement 
date for FY 2022.  The benefit payment stream for the Plan is discounted based on an index rate for 20-year 
tax exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher because the 
projected benefit payouts are expected to be unfunded. 

Changes in Total OPEB Liability  

2022
Total OPEB Liability

Balances at beginning of year $ 15,767                 
Changes for the year:
Service cost $ 886                      
Interest 405                      
Difference between expected and actual experience (4,343)                  
Changes in assumptions 1,701                   
Benefit payments (257)                    

Net changes $ (1,608)                  
Balances at end of year $ 14,159                 

 
 

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
 
The following amounts present the total OPEB liability, as well as what the total OPEB liability would be if it 
were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (1.16%) or one percentage point 
higher (3.16%) than the current discount rate: 
 

1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase 
(0.92%)  Rate (1.92%) (2.92%)

2022 $ 17,812                $ 14,159                $ 11,258                

Rate
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 (CONTINUED) 

NOTE 12- RETIRED EMPLOYEES HEALTH INSURANCE PLAN – (OPEB PLAN):  (CONTINUED) 

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates 

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the Commission, as well as what the total OPEB liability 
would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are one percentage point lower (6.50% 
decreasing to an ultimate rate of 3.50%) or one percentage point higher (8.50% decreasing to an ultimate rate 
of 5.50%) than the current healthcare cost trend rates: 

Healthcare Cost 
1% Decrease Trend 1% Increase 

3.00% 4.00% 5.00%

2022 $ 12,284                $ 14,159                $ 20,214                

Rates

 
 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
 
For the years ended June 30, 2022, the Commission recognized OPEB expense in the amount of $2,639. 

At June 30, 2022 deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources were as follows: 

Deferred Deferred 
Outflows Inflows

 of Resouces of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 8               $ 3,335         
Changes in assumptions 4,018         696            
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on OPEB plan investments -            142            
Change in proportionate share 7,498         -             
Total $ 11,524        $ 4,173         

2022
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 (CONTINUED) 

NOTE 12- RETIRED EMPLOYEES HEALTH INSURANCE PLAN – (OPEB PLAN):  (CONTINUED)  

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources (Continued) 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the plan will 
be recognized in the OPEB expense in future reporting periods as follows: 

Year Ended June 30

2023 $ 1,423  
2024 1,426  
2025 1,429  
2026 1,634  
2027 1,692  

Thereafter (253)    
 

Additional disclosures on changes in total OPEB liability, related ratios, and employer contributions can be 
found in the required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements. 

Summary of OPEB Liability, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources: 
 

Deferred Deferred 
Net OPEB Outflows of  Inflows of OPEB
Liabilities  Resouces  Resouces Expense

Retired Employees Health 
Insurance Plan (Note 12) $ 14,159      $ 11,524      $ 4,173        $ 2,639        
HIC Plan (Note 11) 755           1,028        1,230        186           
GLI Plan (Note 10) 40,197      18,294      15,400      3,070        
Total $ 55,111      $ 30,846      $ 20,803      $ 5,895        
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 (CONTINUED) 

NOTE 13 COST ALLOCATION BASIS – INDIRECT COSTS AND FRINGE BENEFITS: 

Indirect costs, which support all projects, are allocated based on the ratio of the individual project's direct 
salaries, leave, and fringe benefits to total direct salaries, leave, and fringe benefits (excluding temporary 
help).  The indirect cost rate for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, was calculated as follows: 

Indirect costs $ 617,310  
Total direct salaries and fringe benefits 1,082,159

(excluding temporary help)

= 57.04%

The following are included in indirect costs allocated to projects: 
Personnel - salaries $ 168,778  
Personnel - fringe benefits 271,204
Consultant and professional fees 30,900   
Conferences, training and travel 3,482    
Depreciation 71,950   
Equipment 5,323    
Information technology 16,291   
Insurance 3,398    
Marketing and public relations 542   
Meetings 2,699    
Membership dues and subscriptions 5,460    
Miscellaneous 1,783    
Occupancy 21,752   
Office supplies 4,536    
Postage 794   
Telephone and internet 8,418    

Total $ 617,310  

Fringe benefit expense is allocated using the percentage of benefits to total salaries including all personnel 
costs included in other categories. The fringe  benefit  rate  for  the  fiscal  year ended  June  30, 2022 was 
calculated as follows: 

Fringe Benefit expense $ 446,640    
Total salaries 810,849    

= 55.08%

Components of fringe benefits expense for the year ended June 30, 2022 are shown below: 
Fringe Benefits

Employee leave $ 142,612    
Health insurance 122,277    
Pension 96,075     
Social Security taxes 67,665     
Life and disability insurance 18,011     

$ 446,640    
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 (CONTINUED) 

NOTE 14  RESTATEMENT OF NET POSITION: 

Net position was as of July 1, 2021, was restated as follows: 

Net Position as reported July 1, 2021 $ 524,594    

Net pension and OPEB liabilities (427,919)   

Net position as restated July 1, 2021 $ 96,675     

NOTE 15  UPCOMING PRONOUNCEMENTS: 

Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements (SBITAs), (1) defines a SBITA; 
(2) establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use subscription asset—an intangible asset—and a
corresponding subscription liability; (3) provides the capitalization criteria for outlays other than
subscription payments, including implementation costs of a SBITA; and (4) requires note disclosures
regarding a SBITA. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after
June 15, 2022.

Statement No. 100, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections – an amendment of GASB Statement No. 62, 
enhances accounting and financial reporting requirements for accounting changes and error corrections to 
provide more understandable, reliable, relevant, consistent, and comparable information for making 
decisions or assessing accountability. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods 
beginning after June 15, 2023.  

Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences, updates the recognition and measurement guidance for 
compensated absences. It aligns the recognition and measurement guidance under a unified model and 
amends certain previously required disclosures. The requirements of this Statement are effective for 
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2023. 

Management is currently evaluating the impact these standards will have on the financial statements when 
adopted.
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION

SCHEDULE OF COMMISSION'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
FOR THE MEASUREMENT DATE OF JUNE 30, 2021

Pension Plan's
Proportionate Fiduciary Net

Proportion of Share of the NPL Position as a
the Net Pension Proportionate as a Percentage of Percentage of

Liability Share of Covered Covered Payroll  Total Pension
Date (NPL) the NPL Payroll (3)/(4) Liability
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6)

2021 1.09% $ 156,998           $ 768,665 20.42% 94.59%

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years.  Information prior to the 2021 valuation is not available.  
However, additional years will be included as they become available. 

Share of County of Stafford's Pension Plan (a cost-sharing multiple employer plan administered by the VRS)
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
PENSION PLAN
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Contributions in
Relation to Contributions

Contractually Contractually Contribution Employer's as a % of
Required Required Deficiency Covered Covered

Contribution Contribution (Excess) Payroll Payroll
Date (1)* (2)* (3) (4) (5)

2022 $ 79,999            $ 79,999              $ -                 $ 727,925          10.99%

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Information prior to 2022 is not available. However,
additional years will be included as they become available. 

* Excludes contributions (mandatory and match on voluntary) to the defined contribution portion of the 
Hybrid plan.
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION

Notes to Required Supplementary Information
Pension Plan
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

All Others (Non-10 Largest) – Non-Hazardous Duty:

No change
No change
No change
No change

Changes of benefit terms – There have been no actuarially material changes to the System benefit provisions
since the prior actuarial valuation. 

Withdrawal Rates Adjusted rates to better fit experience at each age and service 
decrement through 9 years of service

Mortality Rates (pre-retirement, post-
retirement healthy, and disabled)

Update to Pub-2010 public sector mortality tables. For future 
mortality improvements, replace load with a modified Mortality 
Improvement Scale MP-2020

Retirement Rates Adjusted rates to better fit experience for Plan 1; set separate 
rates based on experience for Plan 2/Hybrid; changed final 
retirement age

Disability Rates
Salary Scale
Line of Duty Disability
Discount Rate

Changes of assumptions – The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020 valuation were based on the
results of an actuarial experience study for the period from July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2020, except the
change in the discount rate, which was based on VRS Board action effective as of July 1, 2019. Changes to the
actuarial assumptions as a result of the experience study and VRS Board action are as follows:
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION

SCHEDULE OF COMMISSION'S SHARE OF NET OPEB LIABILITY
GROUP LIFE INSURANCE (GLI) PLAN
FOR THE MEASUREMENT DATE OF JUNE 30, 2021

Employer's
Proportionate Share

Employer's  of the Net GLI OPEB
Employer's Proportionate  Liability (Asset) Plan Fiduciary 

Proportion of the Share of the Employer's as a Percentage of Net Position as a
Net GLI OPEB Net GLI OPEB Covered Covered Payroll Percentage of Total

Liability (Asset) Liability (Asset) Payroll (3)/(4) GLI OPEB Liability
(2) (3) (4) (5) (6)

1.09% $ 40,197                    $ 768,665 5.23% 67.45%

Date
(1)

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Information prior to the 2021 valuation is not available. However,
additional years will be included as they become available.

2021
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
GROUP LIFE INSURANCE (GLI) PLAN
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Contributions in
Relation to Contributions

Contractually Contractually Contribution Employer's as a % of
Required Required Deficiency Covered Covered

Contribution Contribution (Excess) Payroll Payroll
Date (1) (2) (3) (4) (5)

2022 $ 6,160             $ 6,160                $ -                 $ 727,925.00     0.85%

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years.  Information prior to 2022 is not available.  However, 
additional years will be included as they become available. 
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
GROUP LIFE INSURANCE (GLI) PLAN
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Non-Largest Ten Locality Employers - General Employees

No change
No change
No change
No changeDiscount Rate

Withdrawal Rates

Disability Rates
Salary Scale
Line of Duty Disability

Retirement Rates Adjusted rates to better fit experience for Plan 1; set separate rates based on
experience for Plan 2/Hybrid; changed final retirement age from 75 to 80 for all

Adjusted rates to better fit experience at each age and service decrement through
9 years of service

Mortality Rates (pre-retirement, post-
retirement healthy, and disabled)

Changes of benefit terms – There have been no actuarially material changes to the System benefit provisions since the prior 
actuarial valuation. 

Changes of assumptions – The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period from July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2020, except the change in the discount rate,
which was based on VRS Board action effective as of July 1, 2019. Changes to the actuarial assumptions as a result of the
experience study and VRS Board action are as follows:

Update to Pub-2010 public sector mortality tables. For future mortality
improvements, replace load with a modified Mortality Improvement Scale MP-2020
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION

SCHEDULE OF COMMISSION'S SHARE OF NET OPEB LIABILITY
HEALTH INSURANCE CREDIT (HIC) PLAN
FOR THE MEASUREMENT DATE OF JUNE 30, 2021

Employer's
Proportionate Share

Employer's  of the Net HIC OPEB
Employer's Proportionate  Liability (Asset) Plan Fiduciary 

Proportion of the Share of the Employer's as a Percentage of Net Position as a
Net HIC OPEB Net HIC OPEB Covered Covered Payroll Percentage of Total

Liability (Asset) Liability (Asset) Payroll (3)/(4) HIC OPEB Liability
(2) (3) (4) (5) (6)

1.09% $ 755                    $ 410,759 0.18% 67.45%

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Information prior to the 2021 valuation is not available. However,
additional years will be included as they become available.

Date
(1)

2021
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
HEALTH INSURANCE CREDIT (HIC) PLAN
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Contributions in
Relation to Contributions

Contractually Contractually Contribution Employer's as a % of
Required Required Deficiency Covered Covered

Contribution Contribution (Excess) Payroll Payroll
Date (1) (2) (3) (4) (5)

2022 $ 489 $ 489 $ -                 $ 445,022          0.11%

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Information prior to 2022 is not available. However,
additional years will be included as they become available. 
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
HEALTH INSURANCE CREDIT (HIC) PLAN
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Non-Largest Ten Locality Employers - General Employees

No change
No change
No change
No change

Disability Rates
Salary Scale
Line of Duty Disability
Discount Rate

Mortality Rates (pre-retirement, post-retirement 
healthy, and disabled)

Withdrawal Rates

Changes of benefit terms – There have been no actuarially material changes to the System benefit provisions 
since the prior actuarial valuation. 

Update to Pub-2010 public sector mortality tables. For future
mortality improvements, replace load with a modified
Mortality Improvement Scale MP-2020

Retirement Rates Adjusted rates to better fit experience for Plan 1; set
separate rates based on experience for Plan 2/Hybrid;
changed final retirement age from 75 to 80 for all

Changes of assumptions – The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020, valuation were based on the
results of an actuarial experience study for the period from July 1, 2016 though June 30, 2020, except the
change in the discount rate, which was based on VRS Board action effective as of July 1, 2019. Changes to the
actuarial assumptions as a result of the experience study and VRS Board action are as follows:

Adjusted rates to better fit experience at each age and
service decrement through 9 years of service
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSON

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY (ASSET) AND RELATED RATIOS
RETIRED EMPLOYEE HEALTH INSURANCE PLAN
FOR THE MEASUREMENT DATED JUNE 30, 2022

Total OPEB liability 2022
Service cost $ 886                     
Interest 405                     
Differences between expected and actual experience (4,343)                 
Changes in assumptions 1,701                  
Benefit payments (257)                    
Net change in total OPEB liability $ (1,608)                 
Total OPEB liability - beginning 15,767                 
Total OPEB liability - ending $ 14,159                 

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be included as
they become available. 
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSON

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - RETIRED EMPLOYEE HEALTH INSURANCE PLAN
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Valuation Date: 7/1/2021
Measurement Date: 6/30/2022

No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in GASB 75 to pay related benefits.

Methods and assumptions used to determine OPEB liability:

Mortality Rates The mortality rates are based on the Pub2010G Mortality
Tables.

Inflation 2.50%
Healthcare Trend Rate The healthcare trend rate assumption starts at 5% and gradually

decreases to 3%.
Salary Increase Rates 5.3% initially, decreasing to 3.5% over 20 year period, including

inflation

Actuarial Cost Method Entry age normal level % of salary

Discount Rate 2.45%

Retirement Age VRS eligibility
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Variance
Approved Positive

Actual Budget (Negative)

Revenues:
Federal $ 773,268            $ 1,214,177           $ (440,909)      
State 1,568,906         6,873,144           (5,304,238)   
Local Miscellaneous 231,602            316,646              (85,044)        
Miscellaneous 572,864            753,810              (180,946)      

Total Revenues $ 3,146,640         $ 9,157,777           $ (6,011,137)   

Expenses:
Personnel $ 1,081,867         $ 1,539,857           $ 457,990        
Subgrants 1,092,368         6,219,269           5,126,901     
Consultant and professional fees 298,458            807,455              508,997        
Conferences, training and travel 20,421              37,600                17,179         
Depreciation 71,950              -                     (71,950)        
Equipment 5,323               23,754                18,431         
Information technology 58,926              46,941                (11,985)        
Insurance 3,398               3,458                  60                
Marketing and public relations 145,331            129,630              (15,701)        
Meetings 8,467               14,650                6,183           
Membership dues and subscriptions 9,987               14,218                4,231           
Miscellaneous 1,783               2,628                  845              
Occupancy 21,752              97,668                75,916         
Office supplies 9,854               15,450                5,596           
Postage 1,522               1,785                  263              
Telephone and internet 8,418               8,174                  (244)             
Contingency -                   5,000                  5,000           

Total Expenses $ 2,839,825         $ 8,967,537           $ 6,127,712     

Operating income (loss) $ 306,815            $ 190,240              $ 116,575        

Nonoperating revenue (expenses):
Interest income 132                  -                     132              
Interest expense (11,935)            -                     (11,935)        

Total nonoperating income (expenses) $ (11,803)            $ $

Change in net position $ 295,012            $ 190,240              $ 104,772        

GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION
SCHEDULE OF RESOURCES, APPROPRIATIONS AND EXPENDITURES - ACTUAL AND BUDGET

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(NON-GAAP BASIS)
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GCC TECK MPPDC SEAFOOD NNPDC COMMERCIAL
RFA RIFA TALENT PIPELINE GO VIRGINIA AG E-MARKET KITCHEN NNPDC WORKFORCE PAMUNKEYNEY

(ECONOMIC (ECONOMIC (ECONOMIC (ECONOMIC (ECONOMIC (ECONOMIC (ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT) DEVELOPMENT) DEVELOPMENT) DEVELOPMENT) DEVELOPMENT) DEVELOPMENT) DEVELOPMENT)

Resources
Federal $ -                           $ -                           $ -                           $ -                           $ -                           $ -                           $ -                           
State 2,595                        69,996                      271,733                    54,120                      26,641                      37,648                      40,700                      
Local -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
Miscellaneous -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
Interest income -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

Total Resources $ 2,595                        $ 69,996                      $ 271,733                    $ 54,120                      $ 26,641                      $ 37,648                      $ 40,700                      

Expenditures
Personnel $ -                           -                           165,991                    -                           -                           -                           -                           
Subgrants 2,595                        69,996                      30,833                      54,120                      26,641                      37,648                      40,700                      
Consultant and professional fees -                           -                           65,672                      -                           -                           -                           -                           
Conferences, training and travel -                           -                           2,006                        -                           -                           -                           -                           
Depreciation -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
Equipment -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
Information technology -                           -                           4,121                        -                           -                           -                           -                           
Insurance -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
Marketing and public relations -                           -                           2,138                        -                           -                           -                           -                           
Meetings -                           -                           879                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
Membership dues and subscriptions -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
Miscellaneous -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
Occupancy -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
Office supplies -                           -                           93                             -                           -                           -                           -                           
Postage -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
Telephone and internet -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
Interest expense -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

Total Expenditures $ 2,595                        $ 69,996                      $ 271,733                    $ 54,120                      $ 26,641                      $ 37,648                      $ 40,700                      

GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION
SCHEDULE OF RESOURCES AND EXPENDITURES BY PROGRAM

(Non-GAAP Basis)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
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RIO T ACCELERATOR RIOT PRE-ACCELERATOR VASG LAUNCHING WESTMORELAND
PROGRAM PROGRAM STAFFORD CYBER TECH COASTAL STATEWID WWTC EXPANSION TOTAL

(ECONOMIC (ECONOMIC (ECONOMIC (ECONOMIC (ECONOMIC ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT) DEVELOPMENT) DEVELOPMENT) DEVELOPMENT) DEVELOPMENT) DEVELOPMENT

Resources
Federal $ -                                 $ -                                        $ -                           $ -                           $ -                           $ -                           
State 77,271                            18,175                                   23,258                      180,159                    9,954                        812,250                    
Local -                                 -                                        -                           -                           -                           -                           
Miscellaneous -                                 -                                        -                           -                           -                           -                           
Interest income -                                 -                                        -                           -                           -                           -                           

Total Resources $ 77,271                            $ 18,175                                   $ 23,258                      $ 180,159                    $ 9,954                        $ 812,250                    

Expenditures
Personnel -                                 -                                        -                           -                           -                           165,991                    
Subgrants 77,271                            18,175                                   23,258                      180,159                    9,954                        571,350                    
Consultant and professional fees -                                 -                                        -                           -                           -                           65,672                      
Conferences, training and travel -                                 -                                        -                           -                           -                           2,006                        
Depreciation -                                 -                                        -                           -                           -                           -                           
Equipment -                                 -                                        -                           -                           -                           -                           
Information technology -                                 -                                        -                           -                           -                           4,121                        
Insurance -                                 -                                        -                           -                           -                           -                           
Marketing and public relations -                                 -                                        -                           -                           -                           2,138                        
Meetings -                                 -                                        -                           -                           -                           879                           
Membership dues and subscriptions -                                 -                                        -                           -                           -                           -                           
Miscellaneous -                                 -                                        -                           -                           -                           -                           
Occupancy -                                 -                                        -                           -                           -                           -                           
Office supplies -                                 -                                        -                           -                           -                           93                            
Postage -                                 -                                        -                           -                           -                           -                           
Telephone and internet -                                 -                                        -                           -                           -                           -                           
Interest expense -                                 -                                        -                           -                           -                           -                           

Total Expenditures $ 77,271                            $ 18,175                                   $ 23,258                      $ 180,159                    $ 9,954                        $ 812,250                    

GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

SCHEDULE OF RESOURCES AND EXPENDITURES BY PROGRAM (CONTINUED)
(Non-GAAP Basis)
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CZM TECHNICAL FEMA/VDEM 
 ASSISTANCE DOF GW GREENWAY HMP UPDATE WIP III WIP III 2021 TOTAL

(ENVIRONMENTAL (ENVIRONMENTAL (ENVIRONMENTAL (ENVIRONMENTAL (ENVIRONMENTAL ENVIRONMENTAL
SERVICES) SERVICES) SERVICES) SERVICES) SERVICES) SERVICES

Resources
Federal $ 26,779                    $ 4,943                      $ 6,771                      $ 8,572                      $ 37,705                    $ 84,770                    
State -                          -                          2,256                      -                          -                          2,256                      
Local 10,000                    9,429                      -                          -                          14,500                    33,929                    
Miscellaneous -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          
Interest income -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          

Total Resources $ 36,779                    $ 14,372                    $ 9,027                      $ 8,572                      $ 52,205                    $ 120,955                   

Expenditures
Personnel $ 9,892                      $ 6,784                      $ 1,541                      $ 3,107                      $ 2,385                      $ 23,709                    
Subgrants -                          -                          -                          -                          9,875                      9,875                      
Consultant and professional fees 26,608                    7,380                      7,486                      5,465                      32,325                    79,264                    
Conferences, training and travel 23                           -                          -                          -                          -                          23                           
Depreciation -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          
Equipment -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          
Information technology 40                           -                          -                          -                          -                          40                           
Insurance -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          
Marketing and public relations -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          
Meetings -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          
Membership dues and subscriptions 216                         -                          -                          -                          -                          216                         
Miscellaneous -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          
Occupancy -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          
Office supplies -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          
Postage -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          
Telephone and internet -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          
Interest expense -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          

Total Expenditures $ 36,779                    $ 14,164                    $ 9,027                      $ 8,572                      $ 44,585                    $ 113,127                   

GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION
SCHEDULE OF RESOURCES AND EXPENDITURES BY PROGRAM (CONTINUED)

(Non-GAAP Basis)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

68

DRAFT
                              

-                                -
-                                    -
-                                   -

    ---                                    -     
         -         -                                    -         

              -              --                                  --      

                $ 44,585                $ 44,5858,572                     $$44,5854,585

FTFTFTFTFTFTT



ADVANTAGE CAROLINE DRPT DRPT
VANPOOL LEASED PARKING CMAQ 103685 ADVANTAGE FY22 VANPOOL GW RIDESHARE TOTAL

(GW RIDECONNECT) (GW RIDECONNECT) (GW RIDECONNECT) (GW RIDECONNECT) (GW RIDECONNECT) (GW RIDECONNECT) GW RIDECONNECT

Resources
Federal $ -                           $ -                           $ 139                           $ -                           $ -                           $ -                           $ 139                           
State -                           -                           38                             59,349                      97,667                      258,884                    415,938                    
Local -                           -                           -                           -                           24,417                      64,871                      89,288                      
Miscellaneous 420,512                    2,610                        -                           15,000                      -                           -                           438,122                    
Interest income 58                             -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           58                             

Total Resources $ 420,570                    $ 2,610                        $ 177                           $ 74,349                      $ 122,084                    $ 323,755                    $ 943,545                    

Expenditures
Personnel $ -                           $ -                           $ 177                           $ 74,087                      $ 78,233                      $ 204,344                    $ 356,841                    
Subgrants 420,568                    2,610                        -                           -                           13,800                      -                           436,978                    
Consultant and professional fees -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
Conferences, training and travel -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           3,206                        3,206                        
Depreciation -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
Equipment -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
Information technology -                           -                           -                           99                             -                           3,824                        3,923                        
Insurance -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
Marketing and public relations -                           -                           -                           -                           30,000                      106,220                    136,220                    
Meetings -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
Membership dues and subscriptions -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
Miscellaneous -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
Occupancy -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
Office supplies -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           6,161                        6,161                        
Postage -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
Telephone and internet -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
Interest expense -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

Total Expenditures $ 420,568                    $ 2,610                        $ 177                           $ 74,186                      $ 122,033                    $ 323,755                    $ 943,329                    

GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION
SCHEDULE OF RESOURCES, APPROPRIATIONS, AND EXPENDITURES BY PROGRAM (CONTINUED)

(Non-GAAP Basis)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
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RUW COORD
EFSP 39-861066 EFSP 39-880200  HMIS USER FEES HUD COC PLANNING HUM - CHERP HMIS ASSESS

(HUMAN SERVICES) (HUMAN SERVICES) (HUMAN SERVICES) (HUMAN SERVICES) (HUMAN SERVICES) (HUMAN SERVICES)

Resources
Federal $ 166                              $ 17                               $ -                              $ 13,465                         $ 14,210                         $ -                              
State -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              
Local -                              -                              -                              3,366                           -                              -                              
Miscellaneous -                              -                              10,072                         -                              -                              20,000                         
Interest income -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              

Total Resources $ 166                              $ 17                               $ 10,072                         $ 16,831                         $ 14,210                         $ 20,000                         

Expenditures -                              -                              -                              16,831                         -                              -                              
Personnel -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              
Subgrants -                              -                              155                              -                              -                              20,000                         
Consultant and professional fees -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              
Conferences, training and travel -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              
Depreciation -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              
Equipment -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              
Information technology -                              -                              9,917                           -                              14,210                         -                              
Insurance -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              
Marketing and public relations 166                              17                               -                              -                              -                              -                              
Meetings -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              
Membership dues and subscriptions -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              
Miscellaneous -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              
Occupancy -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              
Office supplies -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              
Postage -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              
Telephone and internet -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              
Interest expense -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              

Total Expenditures $ 166                              $ 17                               $ 10,072                         $ 16,831                         $ 14,210                         $ 20,000                         

GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION
SCHEDULE OF RESOURCES, APPROPRIATIONS, AND EXPENDITURES BY PROGRAM (CONTINUED)

(Non-GAAP Basis)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
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UNSHELTERED
HOMELESSNESS USHUD (HMIS) VHDA HOUSING DEV. VHSP COC TOTAL

(HUMAN SERVICES) (HUMAN SERVICES) (HUMAN SERVICES) (HUMAN SERVICES) HUMAN SERVICES

Resources
Federal $ -                             $ 53,618                        $ $ $ 81,476                        
State -                             89,424                        89,424                        
Local -                             13,405                        19,211                        35,982                        
Miscellaneous 30,786                        13,623                        2,789                          77,270                        
Interest income -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             

Total Resources $ 30,786                        $ 67,023                        $ 13,623                        $ 111,424                      $ 284,152                      

Expenditures -                             67,203                        13,623                        94,611                        192,268                      
Personnel -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             
Subgrants 30,786                        -                             -                             -                             50,941                        
Consultant and professional fees -                             -                             -                             5,000                          5,000                          
Conferences, training and travel -                             -                             -                             3,135                          3,135                          
Depreciation -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             
Equipment -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             
Information technology -                             -                             -                             4,325                          28,452                        
Insurance -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             
Marketing and public relations -                             -                             -                             2,995                          3,178                          
Meetings -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             
Membership dues and subscriptions -                             -                             -                             400                             400                             
Miscellaneous -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             
Occupancy -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             
Office supplies -                             -                             -                             958                             958                             
Postage -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             
Telephone and internet -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             
Interest expense -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             

Total Expenditures $ 30,786                        $ 67,203                        $ 13,623                        $ 111,424                      $ 92,064                        

GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION
SCHEDULE OF RESOURCES, APPROPRIATIONS, AND EXPENDITURES BY PROGRAM (CONTINUED)

(Non-GAAP Basis)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
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FHWA PL DRPT TA GRANT VDRPT 5303 FY21 VDRPT 5303 FY22 TOTAL
(MPO-FAMPO) (MOBILITY STUDY) (VDRPT - 5303) (VDRPT - 5303) MPO-FAMPO

Resources
Federal $ 253,723                $ 54,373                  $ 77,540                  $ 35,879                  $ 421,515
State 31,716                  65,898                  9,692                    4,485                    111,791
Local 31,716                  11,524                  9,694                    4,484                    57,418
Miscellaneous -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Interest income -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Total Resources $ 317,155                $ 131,795                $ 96,926                  $ 44,848                  $ 590,724                

Expenditures
Personnel 297,895                131,852                92,688                  43,881                  566,316                
Subgrants -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Consultant and professional fees -                       -                       960                       -                       960                       
Conferences, training and travel 7,537                    -                       407                       571                       8,515                    
Depreciation -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Equipment -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Information technology 5,953                    -                       2,200                    -                       8,153
Insurance -                       -                       -                       -                       -
Marketing and public relations 3,253                    -                       -                       -                       3,253
Meetings 100                       -                       670                       394                       1,164
Membership dues and subscriptions 2,312                    -                       -                       -                       2,312
Miscellaneous -                       -                       -                       -                       -
Occupancy -                       -                       -                       -                       -
Office supplies 105                       -                       -                       -                       105
Postage -                       -                       -                       -                       -
Telephone and internet -                       -                       -                       -                       -
Interest expense -                       -                       -                       -                       -

Total Expenditures $ 317,155                $ 131,852                $ 96,925                  $ 44,846                  $ 590,778

GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION
SCHEDULE OF RESOURCES, APPROPRIATIONS, AND EXPENDITURES BY PROGRAM (CONTINUED)

(Non-GAAP Basis)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
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FUND BALANCE UNALLOCATED VHDA STRATEGIC
DHCD PLANNING CONTRIBUTIONS RRBC FUNDS PLAN TOTAL

(OTHER SERVICES) (OTHER SERVICES) (OTHER SERVICES) (OTHER SERVICES) (OTHER SERVICES) OTHER SERVICES

Resources
Federal $ -                           $ -                           $ -                           $ -                           $ -                           $ -                           
State 89,971                      -                           15,000                      -                           -                           104,971                    
Local -                           -                           -                           1,001                        -                           1,001                        
Miscellaneous -                           10,518                      27,223                      -                           18,146                      55,887                      
Interest income -                           -                           2                              -                           -                           2                              

Total Resources $ 89,971                      $ 10,518                      $ 42,225                      $ 1,001                        $ 18,146                      $ 161,861                    

Expenditures
Personnel -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
Subgrants -                           -                           23,224                      -                           -                           23,224                      
Consultant and professional fees -                           -                           14,945                      -                           18,146                      33,091                      
Conferences, training and travel -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
Depreciation -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
Equipment -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
Information technology -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
Insurance -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
Marketing and public relations -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
Meetings -                           -                           3,726                        -                           -                           3,726                        
Membership dues and subscriptions -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
Miscellaneous -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
Occupancy -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
Office supplies -                           -                           330                           -                           -                           330                           
Postage -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
Telephone and internet -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
Interest expense -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

Total Expenditures $ -                           $ -                           $ 42,225                      $ -                           $ 18,146                      $ 60,371                      

GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION
SCHEDULE OF RESOURCES, APPROPRIATIONS, AND EXPENDITURES BY PROGRAM (CONTINUED)

(Non-GAAP Basis)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
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2050 LRTP VDOT LAFAYETTE TOTAL SPR RURAL
(RSTP FY2020) (RSTP FY2020) RSTP FY2020 TRANSPORTATION

Resources
Federal $ 97,728                    $ 31,382                    $ 129,110                   $ 56,258                    
State 24,432                    7,845                      32,277                    -                          
Local -                          14,127                    
Miscellaneous -                          
Interest income -                          

Total Resources $ 122,160                   $ 39,227                    $ 161,387                   $ 70,385                    

Expenditures
Personnel 77,814                    -                          77,814                    70,385                    
Subgrants -                          -                          -                          -                          
Consultant and professional fees 44,346                    39,227                    83,573                    -                          
Conferences, training and travel -                          -                          -                          -                          
Depreciation -                          -                          -                          -                          
Equipment -                          -                          -                          -                          
Information technology -                          -                          -                          -                          
Insurance -                          -                          -                          -                          
Marketing and public relations -                          -                          -                          -                          
Meetings -                          -                          -                          -                          
Membership dues and subscriptions -                          -                          -                          -                          
Miscellaneous -                          -                          -                          -                          
Occupancy -                          -                          -                          -                          
Office supplies -                          -                          -                          -                          
Postage -                          -                          -                          -                          
Telephone and internet -                          -                          -                          -                          
Interest expense -                          -                          -                          -                          

Total Expenditures $ 122,160                   $ 39,227                    $ 161,387                   $ 70,385                    

GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION
SCHEDULE OF RESOURCES, APPROPRIATIONS, AND EXPENDITURES BY PROGRAM (CONTINUED)

(Non-GAAP Basis)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

To the Board of Commissioners 
George Washington Regional Commission 
Fredericksburg, Virginia 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the Specifications for Audits of Authorities, Boards, 
and Commissions, issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia, the financial 
statements of the government-type activities and the aggregate remaining fund information of George Washington 
Regional Commission as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the George Washington Regional Commission’s basic financial 
statements and have issued our report thereon dated .   

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting  

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered George Washington 
Regional Commission’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of George 
Washington Regional Commission’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of George Washington Regional Commission’s internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were 
not identified.    However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, we 
identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and 
correct, misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of 
the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.  We 
consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 
2022-1 to be material weaknesses. 
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether George Washington Regional Commission’s 
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could 
have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.  However, providing an opinion on compliance 
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards.  

George Washington Regional Commission Response to Findings 

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the George 
Washington Regional Commission’s response to the findings identified in our audit and described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.  George Washington Regional Commission’s 
response was not subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements 
and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response. 
 
Purpose of This Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 

 
Fredericksburg, Virginia 
DRAFT 
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on  
Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance 

To the Board of Commissioners 
George Washington Regional Commission 
Fredericksburg, Virginia 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited George Washington Regional Commission’s compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and 
material effect on George Washington Regional Commission’s major federal programs for the year ended 
June 30, 2022.  George Washington Regional Commission’s major federal programs are identified in the 
summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.  
 
In our opinion, George Washington Regional Commission complied, in all material respects, with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2022.  
 
Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
 
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and 
the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 
section of our report. 
 
We are required to be independent of George Washington Regional Commission and to meet our other 
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe 
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on 
compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of George 
Washington Regional Commission’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of 
laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to George 
Washington Regional Commission’s federal programs. 
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion 
on George Washington Regional Commission’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform 
Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material 
noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a 
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a 
reasonable user of the report on compliance about George Washington Regional Commission’s compliance 
with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing 
Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we: 
 
· Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 
· Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, 
evidence regarding George Washington Regional Commission’s compliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances. 
 
· Obtain an understanding of George Washington Regional Commission’s internal control over compliance 
relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to 
test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of George Washington Regional Commission’s 
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 
 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal 
control over compliance that we identified during the audit. 
 
Report on Internal Control over Compliance 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, 
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not 
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type 
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal 
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditors’ 
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies 
in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in 
internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However 
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material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not 
identified. 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control 
over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 
 
 

Fredericksburg, Virginia 
DRAFT 
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Federal Pass-through
Assitance Entity

Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/ Listing Identifying Federal
  Program or Cluster Title Number Number Expenditures

Environmental Protection Agency:
Pass-through Payments:

Virginia Department of Environmental Quality:
Geographic Programs - Chesapeake Bay Program Implementation,

 Regulatory/Accountability and Monitoring Grants 66.964 96367201-2 $ 46,277            

Department of Transportation:
Pass-through Payments:

Virginia Department of Transportation:
Highway Planning and Construction Cluster:
  Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 119008 382,972          

Virginia Department of Rail and Public Transportation
Metropolitan Transportation Planning and State and 
  Non-Metropolitan Planning and Research 20.505 VA-2020-044/VA2021-030 224,050          

Total Department of Transportation $ 607,022          

Department of Commerce:
Pass-through Payments:

Virginia Department of Environmental Quality:
Coastal Zone Management Administration Awards 11.419 NA20NOS4190207/ $ 26,779            

NA21NOS4190152
Total Department of Commerce $ 26,779            

Department of Housing and Urban Development:
Pass-through Payments:

Virginia Department of Housing & Community Development:
Emergency Solutions Grant Program 14.231 20-CHERP-HMIS-122 $ 14,210            

Direct Payments:
Continuum of Care Program 14.267 N/A 67,083            

Total Department of Housing and Community Development $ 81,293            

Department of Agriculture
Pass-through Payments:

Virginia Department of Foresty:
Cooperative Forestry Assistance 10.664 20UCF16 $ 4,943             

Department of Homeland Security:
Pass-through Payments:

Virginia Department of Emergency Management:
BRIC: Building Resilient Infrastructure 97.047 F2G3FMDN23M4 $ 6,771             

Direct Payments:
Emergency Food and Shelter National Board Program 97.024 N/A 183                

Total Department of Homeland Security $ 6,954             

Total expenditures of federal awards $ 773,268          

See accompanying notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards.
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Note 1 - Basis of Presentation:

(3) The Commission did not elect to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under
Uniform Guidance.

Note 3 - Relationship to Financial Statements:

Federal expenditures, revenues and capital contributions are reported in the Commission's basic
financial statements as follows:

    Federal revenues per the basic financial statements 773,268$       

    Total federal expenditures per the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 773,268$       

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal award
activity of George Washington Regional Commission under programs of the federal government for the year
ended June 30, 2022. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected
portion of the operations of Regional Commission, it is not intended to and does not
present the financial position, changes in net position, or cash flows of  Regional 
Commission.

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

(1) Expenditures on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are
recognized following the cost principles contained in Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures
are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

(2) Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available.
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Section I - Summary of Auditors' Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditors' report issued: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified? Yes
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? None reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No

Federal awards

Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified? No
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? None reported

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified

No

Identification of major programs:

Federal Assistance Listing # Name of Federal Program or Cluster

20.205 Highway Planning and Construction

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs $750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? No

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR, Section 200.516(a)?
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Section II - Financial Statement Findings

Criteria:

Condition:

Cause:

Effect:

Recommendation:

Management's Response:

Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

There are no federal award findings and questioned costs to report. 

2022-001: Material Audit Adjustments Proposed by the External Auditor (Material Weakness)

Identification of a material adjustment to the financial statements that was not detected by the entity’s internal controls 
indicates that a material weakness may exist.

The financial statements required material adjustments to ensure such statements complied with Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles (GAAP).  Material audit adjustments were proposed for Net Pension and OPEB liabilities.

The Commisson's internal controls in place to capture and record all necessary balances in the automated accounting system 
were not adequate for the year ended June 30, 2022.

There is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the financial statement will not be prevented or detected by 
the entity's internal controls over financial reporting.

We recommend that the Commisson strengthen internal controls to capture and record all balances accurately in accordance 
with General Accepted Accounting Principles and eliminate the need for material audit adjustments.  In addition, capturing 
and recording all necessary balances in the accounting system will assist Management and those charged with governance in 
their decision making for the Commission.
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

There are no prior year audit findings.
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9b.ii. Resolution 23-02: Acceptance of FY22 GWRC Financial (ACTION ITEM) 
 
  



George Washington Regional Commission 
406 Princess Anne Street 

Fredericksburg, Virginia 22401 
(540) 373-2890 

Fax (540) 899-4808 
www.gwregion.org 

CAROLINE COUNTY       CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG       KING GEORGE COUNTY     SPOTSYLVANIA COUNTY       STAFFORD COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 23-02 

ACCEPTING AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING 
JUNE 30, 2022 

WHEREAS, the George Washington Regional Commission (“the Commission”) is the Planning 
District Commission serving the City of Fredericksburg and Caroline, King George, Spotsylvania and 
Stafford counties, known together as Planning District 16; and 

WHEREAS, on an annual basis, the Commission engages an independent auditor to complete an 
annual single audit and financial statements audit of the Commission’s finances in accordance with 
applicable auditing and accounting standards; and  

WHEREAS, Robinson, Farmer, Cox CPA’s was engaged as the independent auditor to  
complete an audit of the Commission’s financial statements for FY22 and render an opinion as to the 
Commission’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance with relevant laws, regulations, 
contracts and grant agreements (FY22 Audit Report); and  

WHEREAS, representatives from Robinson, Farmer, Cox, CPA’s presented the results of FY22 
Audit Report to the Commission on November 28, 2022; and  

WHEREAS, Robinson, Farmer, Cox, CPA’s advised that FY22 Audit Report concluded that the 
Commission’s FY22 financial statements fairly present the Commission’s financial position as of June 
30, 2022 and that the Commission has adequate controls in place to ensure accurate financial reporting 
and compliance with relevant laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements; and  

WHEREAS, based upon the Robinson, Farmer, Cox, CPA’s presentation and a review of FY22 Audit 
Report, the Commission finds FY22 Audit Report to be acceptable. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the George Washington Regional Commission 
that it hereby accepts FY22 Audit Report and authorizes the Executive Director to take all such actions 
necessary and proper to carry out the purpose and intent of this resolution. 

Adopted by the George Washington Regional Commission at its duly called meeting on November 
28, 2022 in the City of Fredericksburg, Virginia, a quorum being present. 

___________________________________________ 
Jason Graham, Chair November 28, 2022 



 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

9a.iii. VDEQ Septic Local Partner Program Grant Application  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Approximately $5,000,000 will be allocated to local partners to develop and 
implement a funding program for projects that provide septic system repair, 
replacement and upgrades as the wastewater treatment solution. SLPP projects can 
also include eliminating failing septic systems, pit privies and straight pipe 
discharges and connection to a new or existing sewer collection system. 

Eligible Projects 
Eligible project types include: 

• Individual and community septic system repair, pump outs, replacement,
and upgrades

• Projects that eliminate straight pipe discharges and pit privies by installing
septic systems

• Projects that eliminate septic systems, pit privies and straight pipe discharges
by connecting homes and businesses to a sewer collection system

Eligible Applicants 
Eligible applicants for SLPP ARPA funds include Local Governments and other 
entities as defined in Virginia Code § 62.1-224 

Budget Requirements 

• No Local Partner match requirement;
• No max grant amount
• 35% Administration; 65% BMP
• Reimbursement basis; held at 95% of grant amount to ensure satisfactory

implementation

Local Program Limits 

Cost Share Grant 
• 100% if household income is at or below area median income



• 50% if over area median income  
• Income verification required  
• Cost cap of $40k per project if eligible for 100% cost-share  
• Cost cap of $20k per project if eligible for 50% cost-share 

 
Area median household income is approximately: HUD FY2022 
Fredericksburg - $142,300 
King George - $112,000 
Caroline - $85,600 
Spotsylvania - $142,300 
Stafford - $142,300 
 

 

Application Instructions and Timeline* 
Applications will be solicited electronically for projects requesting SLPP ARPA funds 
from October 15, 2022 through December 15, 2022. Applications will be evaluated 
through January 31, 2023 and an SLPP ARPA fund project list will be provided to the 
DEQ Director for review by February 15, 2023. The project list will be authorized by 
March 1, 2023.*  

Funds will be disbursed on a reimbursement basis and disbursements can begin 
following an executed grant agreement. 

GWRC is considering applying for $300,000 grant to provide $195,000 in design, 
procurement, permitting and construction (maintenance) costs. Estimated costs 
range from below $1,000 for a single pump out to up to $40,000 for a replacement 
system design, permitting and construction.  

GWRC would have to develop Program Guidelines for eligibility, application ranking, 
procurement and project management. Middle Peninsula PDC has a long standing 
program model GWRC would utilize as a guide.  



9b. Executive Director’s Report 



 

Executive Director’s Report 
November 28, 2022 
Agenda Overview 

Program Activities/Accomplishments 

• Agenda Overview 
 
6.  Financial Report 

The monthly financial reports for October 2022 is included for your review.  
 Cash Flow – Cash on Hand is $657,642 as of 10/31/22 vs. $430,656 as of 09/30/22 
 Net positive cash flow of $226,987 for the month of October 
 Accounts Receivables of $464,571 as of 10/31/22 vs $681,656 as of 9/30/22 
 Available working capital (Equity) of $548,005 in October vs $647,922 in September or 

approximately 3.0 months of recent operating expenses with FY23 average monthly 
operating expenses of $345,718 
 

We are 4 months into the new fiscal year or 33% of the year. 
 YTD Revenues & Expenses are 18.6% of budgeted amount. 
 YTD Operating Revenues & Expenses are 25% of the budgeted amount.  
 YTD Pass Through Revenues & Expenses are 14% of budgeted amount. 

 
We have approximately 100 days of average expenses in reserve. We have decreased our accounts 
receivables from beginning fiscal year deficiencies and are back to normal cash flow. 
 
 

7.  Public Involvement 
a. Public Comment – No requests 

 b. Written Comments - None 
c. Presentations 

i. Eldon James of the Rappahannock River Basin Commission to provide an update on the RRBC 
Technical Committee’s Solar Facility Development and provide a brief update of recent RRBC 
activities  
ii. As a VDEQ Regulatory Advisory Panel member, Eldon assisted in obtaining Ryan Green with 
DEQ’s Water Supply Planning to provide an update of DEQ’s actions toward local and regional 
water supply planning regulation changes. This is in response to recent legislation with 
information at Virginia Code Chapter 3.2. Conservation of Water Resources; State Water 
Control Board. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



8. Old Business 
 

REMOVED FROM COMMISSION CONSIDERATION – After conversations with the Chief 
Administrative Officers and Community Health Partners, and the Commissions concerns 
expressed at the October meeting, staff removed the consideration of Regional Housing 
Advisory Committee Framework . GWRC staff will continue to work with area local 
governments and the regional Health Department along with private and NGO stakeholders to 
pursue housing education and information among the regional stakeholders. The Community 
Health Plan volunteer committee will continue to meet and develop housing education forums 
and an annual comprehensive regional housing summit to promote discussions and build 
partnerships between housing providers and stakeholders. GWRC staff will act as facilitators to 
the volunteer group. 

 
a. Employee Handbook – Resolution 23-03 Employee Handbook, Personnel Policy Revisions. Staff 

is working toward a re-write of the Employee Handbook updating many of the current policies. 
An emphasis is being placed on providing broad policy directives to be approved by the 
Commission and more narrow procedures to be developed by the Executive Director with staff 
leadership input. This allows more flexibility in the implementation of policies, creating a 
mechanism for quick procedural changes when necessary but always staying within the 
parameters of the policies established by the Commission.  

 
The first group of policies for your review and comments include: 
1. Driver’s License and Records Check Policy 
2. Travel Policy 
3. Dress Code Policy 
4. Professional Association Membership & Trainings Policy 

 
 It may be cumbersome to both develop and for the Commission to review all at once and delay 

the implementation of several policies that need immediate attention. Staff intend to begin to 
periodically bring to the Commission a few recommendations every few months until the policy 
has been updated. This will begin in November with draft recommendations for a January 
consideration. 

 
No action required at November meeting. 
 
b. Calendar Year 2023 GWRC Meeting Schedule - Included in the meeting packet is proposed 

Commission meeting schedule for calendar year 2023. The schedule follows the established 
fourth Monday at 6:00 PM schedule. We have found no conflicts with holidays or known 
events. The only close conflict is the November meeting falling on the Monday after 
Thanksgiving, the same as 2022 when no proposed changes were made.  

 
Recommended Action is a “motion to approve the FY23 GWRC meeting calendar as presented (or as 

amended)”. 
 

 
 
 
 
 



9. New Business 
a.  FY22 GWRC Annual Audit Report  

i. Andrew Grossnickle with Robinson Farmer Cox Associates will present the GWRC Fiscal 
Year Annual Audit report. This will be the first year of having RFC perform the annual 
audit. Mr. Grossnickle will be available to answer questions. A draft is included in your 
packet for review. 

ii.  Resolution 23-02, Acceptance of FY22 GWRC Financial Report – Upon satisfactory 
answers to the FY22 Financial Audit, the Commission is asked to accept, not approve, 
the annual audit.  

iii.  GWRC is considering applying for approximately $300,000 for a Virginia Department of 
Environmental Quality Septic Local Partner Program grant. This grant would allow grants 
to median income families and lower to address failing septic systems from tank pump 
outs to redesign and construction of new systems, up to an individual value of $40,000. 
The application is due December 15th and would provide region wide assistance. If 
applied and awarded, final acceptance would be required by the Commission. I will 
provide details and answer questions at Monday’s meeting. 

 
Recommended Action is a “motion to accept the Fiscal Year 2022 GWRC Financial Report as 

presented by Robinson Farmer Cox.” 
 

I have provided you the draft audit that we received on Tuesday evening. There are 
several areas of question and several grammar corrections to be included on the final 
copy. There is nothing that changes the positive financial report of the audit. You will 
note that this audit is quite more detailed than previous audits due to federal revenues 
exceeding $750,000 by $23,268 and requiring a Single Audit this year and also a report 
identifying unfunded liabilities of Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) for 
retirement and life insurance liabilities after employee retirement. I know each of you 
see this in your local government annual audit. Robinson, Farmer, Cox will explain in 
greater detail on Monday evening. 
 
Highlights of the audit include: 
• Increase of Total Net Position by $295,012 with a TNP of $391,687. Of course this is 

a point in time amount for June 30th. 
• Unmodified (positive) report by auditors 
• No audit findings required to be reported. 
• Budgeted indirect cost rate of 44.52% and actual 57.04% 
• Budgeted salary fringe rate of 58.52% and actual of 55.08 

 
b.  Executive Director’s Report. Details of this report and below. 
 
c. Correspondence 

 
10. Closed Session 

Staff has been made aware of a citizen request of concerns regarding the GWRC employment of the 
FAMPO Administrator. Because of the individual personal nature of the request for personnel action 
and because of possible legal considerations, a brief closed session discussion of this matter is 
recommended. I would be glad to discuss via telephone individually as needed. No action is anticipated 
from the closed session. 



 
 
Commission & Staffing updates 
 
• City Councilor Matt Kelly has stepped down as voting City Representative on the GWRC 

Commission and City Councilor Jonathan Gerlach has taken his voting member position. Matt will 
continue to serve as alternate for the City.  

 
 
 
 
Program Updates 
 

 
• Executive Director Activities 

• Fredericksburg Leadership Breakfast. 
• Attended GO Va Region 6 Council meeting in Warsaw. 
• Attended VAPDC Director’s Annual Strategic Planning Meeting. 
• Participated in City of Fredericksburg Homeless Initiative meeting. 
• Attended Quarterly Brief to Community by Dahlgren Naval Base. 
• Attended Virginia Association of Counties Annual Conference. 
• Attended Annual Governor’s Housing Conference. 

 
• Staff Activities 

• Held monthly CAO’s meeting at GWRC offices. 
• Staff planning retreat at King George County Library and river excursion with Friends of 

Rappahannock. 
• Cybersecurity Training Seminar 
• Hosted Fredericksburg City Leadership Meeting 

 
• Economic Development – GO Virginia 

 Continued grant opportunity with FRA and US EDA to develop a Comprehensive Economic 
Development Strategy (CEDS) for Planning District 16. (strpl.I.d) 

 Region 6 Council Executive Committee Meeting 
 Matthews EDA Meeting 
 ULI Technical Assistance Planning at Gloucester County 
 Coastal Resilience and Adaptation Economic Committee 
 Fredericksburg Chamber Workforce Grant 

 
• Environmental Services 

 Hazard Mitigation Plan (strpl.II.b) 
• Draft plan has been submitted to VDEM for initial review. 

 GWRC staff has been working with Virginia Department of Health and Environmental 
consultants The Berkley Group considering the state initiative to create a regional 
septic/water system improvement grant for Planning District 16. Currently there is no 



regional or local entity providing this grant service to residents with failing septic or water 
systems. VDH provides assistance from Richmond and has seen very limited applications 
from our region. Other PDC’s in the Commonwealth provide this service for their region. We 
will report back with recommendations to pursue or not. (strpl.II.b & III.c) 

 Submitted an EPA Planning Grant of $500,000 for two Brownfield sites in City of 
Fredericksburg and Spotsylvania County.  

 Attended RRBC Technical Committee meeting 
 Sustainability Success in Fredericksburg Food Coop 
 Final CZM report submitted 
 Fredericksburg Clean & Green 
 Meeting Soil & Water Conservation District 
 Spotsylvania Planning Meeting 
 Intergovernmental Project Reviews:  

https://gwregion.org/public-notices/intergovernmental-reviews 
• 11/16/2022 VDEQ Withdrawal of Groundwater in Hanover County— Letter of Support 
• 11/3/2022 VDEQ Federal Consistency Certification – Hazel Run Glen, Spotsylvania 

County, VA 
• 11/3/2022 VDEQ Federal Consistency Certification – Kalahari Resort and Conventions, 

Spotsylvania County, VA 
 

• Housing & Community Health Services – Continuum of Care 
 Hosted Fredericksburg Homeless Initiative Meeting 
 CoC Membership Meeting 
 Virginia Community Food Connections 
 PDC Housing Grant Meeting 
 PD16 Human Trafficking Taskforce 
 Governor’s Housing Conference 

 
• Transportation Planning – FAMPO and Rural Transportation  

 Ongoing East-West Transportation Study 
 Ongoing Virginia Central Railway Crossing Study 
 

• Transportation Demand Management – GWRideConnect  
 Completed bi-annual vanpool data update survey  
 attended my first TDM Forum in Atlanta where I was able to create new and foster 

established relationships   
 Citizen outreach via phone and email  
 Partnered with F-burg Visitor’s Center - working on plans to attend the Welcome Aboard 

Event at MCB Quantico 
 Reached out the TIP contact on Naval Base Dahlgren 
 Mass email to all local HOAs, rental offices to see if they need any more marketing post 

cards  
 Fredericksburg Station Passenger Rail. Below is available data for passenger rail use to and 

from the Fredericksburg Station. More detailed reports will be developed for future 
meetings. 

https://gwregion.org/public-notices/intergovernmental-reviews
https://gwregion.org/wp-content/uploads/GW0003102_Public-Notice-with-AOI.pdf
https://gwregion.org/wp-content/uploads/GW0003102_Public-Notice-Gov-Letter_11-16-2022.pdf
https://gwregion.org/wp-content/uploads/22-151F-Hazel-Run-Glen-Corps-404-Permit.fcc_.pdf
https://gwregion.org/wp-content/uploads/22-151F-Hazel-Run-Glen-Corps-404-Permit.fcc_.pdf
https://gwregion.org/wp-content/uploads/11-03-22-signed-22-149F-Corps-FCC-Kalahari.pdf
https://gwregion.org/wp-content/uploads/11-03-22-signed-22-149F-Corps-FCC-Kalahari.pdf


 Virginia Rail Express Fredericksburg Line Ridership Data : 
https://www.vre.org/service/rider/train-utilization-trends/ 
10/14/2022 

• 4,515 Daily Ridership – 34.0 % Utilization Rate – 16 Trains 
11/18/2022 

• 3,854 Daily Ridership – 28.75% Utilization Rate – 16 Trains 
 Amtrak Fredericksburg: FFY 2021 

• 41,297 Annual Ridership (113 Daily) 
 Amtrak Fredericksburg Boardings and Disembarking 

• 6,318 September, 2022 
 
•  Future Significant Dates/Meetings of Note  

• GWRC Commission Meeting January 23, 2023 at 6:00 PM 
• FAMPO Policy Committee Meeting  November 28, 2022 at 7:30 PM (at end of GWRC meeting) 
• January and February FAMPO meetings will follow GWRC meetings due to holidays. 
• Office Holidays -  December 26, 2022, January 2, January 16.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://www.vre.org/service/rider/train-utilization-trends/
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